
 
 

 
A California Joint Powers Agency 

 
 

Member Agency  
Representatives 

 
Monica Solorzano 
City of Carpinteria 

 
Kyle Richards, Vice-Chair 

City of Goleta 
 

Gabe Teran 
City of Oxnard 

 
Steven Gama 

City of Port Hueneme 
 

Doug Halter 
City of San Buenaventura 

 
Eric Friedman 

City of Santa Barbara 
 
                   Laura Capps 

     Das Williams 
County of Santa Barbara 

 
Vianey Lopez, Chair 

 Matt LaVere 
County of Ventura 

 
 
 
 

Executive Director 
Marc Beyeler 

Santa Barbara Address: 
105 East Anapamu, Suite 201 

Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

Ventura Address: 
501 Poli St. 
P.O. Box 99 

Ventura, CA 93001 

Email: 
Staff@Beacon.ca.gov 

Website: 
http://www.beacon.ca.gov 

 
 

NOTICE MEETING 
 

 
BEACH EROSION AUTHORITY FOR CLEAN OCEANS AND 

NOURISHMENT (BEACON) 
May 17, 2024 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a MEETING of the Beach Erosion 
Authority for Clean Oceans and Nourishment (BEACON). The date, time, 
and place of the meeting shall be as follows: 

 
DATE: May 17, 2024 
TIME: 9:00 AM 
PLACE: IN-PERSON AND TELECONFERENCE (see details below) 
 
The agenda of business to be conducted is below. 
Vianey Lopez, Chairperson BEACON 

 
Members of the public may participate in-person for this meeting at the 
following locations: 
 
City of Carpinteria 
Carpinteria City Hall 
City Council Chambers 
5775 Carpinteria Ave 
Carpinteria, CA 93013 
  

 County of Santa Barbara 
Administration Building 
105 E. Anapamu St. 4th Floor, 
2nd District Office 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 

Oxnard City Council Chambers 
(2nd Street Parking Lot entrance) 
300 W 3rd Street 
Oxnard, CA 93030 
 

  
 

Members of the public may also participate via teleconference for this 
meeting by: 

 
1. You may observe the live meeting of the Board of Directors via Zoom 

Meeting:   
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84283380214?pwd=YldyeVhFNkw4cEd
ZQlhzZ0VVRHo2UT09 

 
Meeting ID: 842 8338 0214 
Passcode: 799710 

 
 

mailto:Staff@Beacon.ca.gov
https://protect.checkpoint.com/v2/___http:/www.beacon.ca.gov/___.YzJ1OmNvdmF2YW5hbjpjOm86Njk5OTI1MDliMWZhZmY2ZmRlYTM1OWY3Nzc4MDRiNWQ6Njo2ZDkyOmQzMTY1YTUwYTI5MGYzZTBlZGNjNGUzN2M2MjQ2NDQ0NTNlMmM1NWJmNjA3Y2NhZmNhMGNjZTVlNWNhNWE2OWU6cDpU


May 17, 2024, Board Meeting Agenda 
 

 

 
Page 2 of 5  

3. If you wish to make a general public comment or to comment on a specific agenda, the following 
methods are available: 
a. Distribution to the Board. Submit comments via email to Staff@Beacon.ca.gov prior to   5:00 

p.m. on Wednesday, May 15, 2024, or through mail to BEACON at 501 Poli Street, Ventura, 
CA 93001 to be received no later than 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, May 15, 2024. Your 
comment will be placed into the record and distributed appropriately. 

b. Read into the record at the meeting. Submit comments of 250 words, or less, via email  to 
Staff@Beacon.ca.gov prior to 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, May 15, 2024, prior to the Board 
meeting. Please indicate if you would like to make a general public comment, a comment 
on a specific agenda item, or both. Please state in your email, or mail, if you would like the 
comment "read into the record." Every effort will be made to read your comment into the 
record, but comments may not be read due to time limitations. Comments timely received on 
an agenda item will be placed into the record and distributed accordingly. 

c. By Zoom. Log onto Zoom as described above. The meeting will be controlled by the 
BEACON Chair. If you wish to make a comment during the meeting, please raise your hand 
using the Zoom instructions on your computer. By using the typed messaging capability of 
Zoom you should also indicate to the Chair which Agenda Item you wish to speak on or if 
you wish to make a general comment that is not specific to an Agenda Item. BEACON Staff 
will make every effort to call you during the indicated item so that you may comment. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations 
to participate in the meeting should contact BEACON at least three working days prior to the meeting. 

 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
1. Administrative Items 

 
A. Call to Order, Roll Call and Introductions–Chair  

 
The following matters listed under Administrative Items constitute a consent agenda, and will be 
acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Board. Matters listed as an Administrative Item will 
be read only on the request of a member of the Board or the public, in which event the matter 
shall be removed from the Administrative Agenda and considered as a separate item. 
 
B. Approval of Agenda and Filing of Certificate of Agenda Posting. 
C. Consideration and Approval of Minutes of the BEACON Meeting held on March 15, 

2024.(Exhibit I) 
 

2. Public Comment and Other Matters not on the Agenda 
 

 
2. You may call in to listen live to the Board of Directors meeting by dialing 1669 444 9171 and 

then entering the following when prompted: 
Meeting ID: 842 8338 0214 and 
Passcode: 799710 

mailto:Staff@Beacon.ca.gov
mailto:Staff@Beacon.ca.gov


May 17, 2024, Board Meeting Agenda 
 

 
Page 3 of 5  

3. BEACON Budget Actions and Financial Reports  
Recommended Actions:  

i. Adopt an increase to voting member assessments (membership dues) by 3% for Fiscal 
Year 2024-2025 to provide an additional $10,080 in revenue. (Exhibit I) (Requires 
unanimous approval (10/10 vote)). 

ii. Upon approval of member assessments, approve the Recommended Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 Budget (Exhibit II). 

iii. Adopt the Budget Resolution 2024-3 for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 (Exhibit III). 
 

4. Projects – No Items 
 

5. BEACON Organization and Program 
 

A. Board Member Reports 
Directors are invited to provide reports and updates on items of interest in their County or 
City. 

 
B. Appointment of Brian Brennan as Special Projects Advisor 

i. Receive a Staff Report on Special Projects Staff; and 
ii. Adopt Resolution 2024-2 appointing Brian Brennan as Special  

 Projects Volunteer Staff for a period up to June 30, 2025 (Exhibit 1). 
  

C. BEACON Contracts and Agreements 
Recommended Actions: 

  Grant Project Agreements 
i. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with California State 

University Channel Islands (CSUCI) for the Southern California Cell Phone Data 
Project to assist BEACON in analyzing large-scale mobility data from cell phone 
derived-location beach information in combination with traditional on-the-ground 
beach use counts and surveys with a period of performance from May 21, 2024 to June 
30, 2025 in an amount not to exceed $40,000 using grant funds provided by The Bay 
Foundation (Attachment I). 

ii. Approve, ratify, and authorize the Executive Director to execute Amendment No. 1 to 
the Grant Agreement with the California Ocean Protection Council (OPC) for the 
Coastal Resilience project to extend the term through December 31, 2024, consistent 
with the approved scope of work and without a change in the grant amount of $440,800 
(Attachment II).  

iii. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Environmental 
Science Associates (ESA) to provide continuous project performance physical 
monitoring of the Surfers Point Nature-Based Living Shoreline and Managed Retreat 
project with a period of performance from May 17, 2024, to December 31, 2024, in 
an amount not to exceed $25,000 using grant funds provided by the CA Ocean 
Protection Council (Attachment III). 

iv. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Coastal Restoration 
Consultants (CRC) to provide continuous project performance ecological monitoring 
of the Surfers Point Nature-Based Living Shoreline and Managed Retreat project with 



May 17, 2024, Board Meeting Agenda 
 

 
Page 4 of 5  

a period of performance from May 17, 2024, to December 31, 2024, in an amount not 
to exceed $10,000 using grant funds provided by the CA Ocean Protection Council 
(Attachment IV). 

v. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement with 
Environmental Science Associates (ESA) to assist BEACON with completing the 
Regional Coastal Adaptation Monitoring Plan (RCAMP) and developing the specific 
pilot projects without a change to the a period of performance from December 15, 
2022 to December 31, 2025, in an amount not to exceed $70,000 using grant funds 
provided by the California Coastal Commission, in coordination with the City of Santa 
Barbara (Attachment V);  

vi. Approve, ratify, and authorize the Executive Director to execute Amendment No. 2 to 
the Grant Agreement with the Ocean Protection Council (OPC) for the Santa Barbara 
County Debris Basin Modifications Project to extend the term through December 31, 
2024, and to re-define the scope of the project without a change in the grant amount 
of $539,000 (Attachment VI);  

vii. Approve and authorize the Chair to sign a Cooperative Agreement with the Santa 
Barbara County Flood Control District to define the roles and responsibilities for 
delivery of the Santa Barbara County Debris Basin Modifications Project with a period 
of performance ending December 31, 2024, for an amount not to exceed $539,000 
(Attachment VII). 

 
 Annual Agreements - After approval and adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget: 
 

viii. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Marc Beyeler/Beyeler 
& Associates to provide Executive Director Services to BEACON with a period of 
performance from July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025, in an amount not to 
exceed $159,640 (Attachment VIII). 

ix. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Gerald Comati/COM3 
Consulting to provide Program and Project Management Services to BEACON with 
a period of performance from July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025, in an amount not 
to exceed $50,000 (Attachment IX). 

x. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Pam Baumgardner to 
provide Webmaster, Social Media Communication, and Information Management 
Services to BEACON with a period of performance from July 1, 2024, through June 
30, 2025, in an amount not to exceed $6,000 (Attachment X). 

xi. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Santa Barbara County 
for Legal Services to BEACON with a period of performance from July 1, 2024, 
through June 30, 2025, in an amount not to exceed $15,000 (Attachment XI). 

xii. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Ventura County to 
provide Accounting Services to BEACON with a period of performance from July 1, 
2024, through June 30, 2025, in an amount not to exceed $20,000 (Attachment XII).  

xiii. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Jenna Wisniewski to 
provide specialist science support services, focusing on assisting BEACON Science 
Advisory Committee (SAC) activities and providing Geographic Information Systems 
(GIS) Services, in an amount not to exceed $25,000 with a period of performance from 
July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025 (Attachment XIII). 

User



May 17, 2024, Board Meeting Agenda 
 

 
Page 5 of 5  

xiv. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with California State 
University Channel Islands (CSUCI) to provide research and technical support 
regarding regional sediment management and regional climate adaptation with a 
period of performance from July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025, in an amount not to 
exceed $10,000 (Attachment XIV). 

 
 

6. Executive Director’s Report and Communications 
The Executive Director will report on recent activities and achievements of BEACON, upcoming 
events of interest to the Board of Directors and the public, and general status of BEACON major 
projects, including the status of recent BEACON presentations on activities and accomplishments 
to our member agencies. There will be no Board discussion except to ask questions or refer matters 
to Staff; no action will be taken unless listed on a subsequent agenda. 

Upcoming July Meeting Agenda: 
A. Presentation-Regional Sediment Management (RSM) and Sea Level Rise (SLR) Adaptation 

Planning Initiatives 
B. Project Updates 
C. Budget Planning Update 

 
7. Adjourn  

 
Late Distribution of Materials 
Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and 
distributed by the City Clerk to all or a majority of the members of the BEACON Board less than 
72 hours prior to that meeting are available for inspection in the City Clerk Office, at 5775 
Carpinteria Ave, Carpinteria, CA 93013 and on the Internet at: BEACON.CA.GOV. Any written 
ex-parte communication subject to disclosure by members of the BEACON Board may be 
published online as an attachment to the corresponding item. 
 
 



Page 1 of 1 
 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2024 
Agenda Item: 1B-C 

 
To:  BEACON Board of Directors 
From:  Executive Director 
Date:  May 10, 2024 
 
Subject:  Administrative Items 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: 

The following matters listed under Administrative Items constitute a consent 
agenda and will be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Board. Matters 
listed as an Administrative Item will be read only on the request of a member 
of the Board or the public, in which event the matter shall be removed from 
the Administrative Agenda and considered as a separate item. 

B. Approval of Agenda and Filing of Certificate of Agenda Posting. 
C. Consideration and Approval of Minutes of the BEACON Meeting 

held on March 15, 2024. (Exhibit I). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A California Joint Powers Agency 
 

Member Agencies 
 

Monica Solorzano 
City of Carpinteria 

 
Kyle Richards, Vice-Chair 

City of Goleta 
 

Gabe Teran 
City of Oxnard 

 
Steven Gama 

City of Port Hueneme 
 

Doug Halter 
City of San Buenaventura 

 
Eric Friedman 

City of Santa Barbara 
 

        Laura Capps 
     Das Williams 

County of Santa Barbara 
 

Vianey Lopez, Chair 
 Matt LaVere 

County of Ventura 
 
 

Executive Director 
Marc Beyeler 

 
 

Santa Barbara Address: 
105 East Anapamu, Suite 201 

Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 
 

Ventura Address: 
501 Poli St. 
P.O. Box 99 

Ventura, CA 93001 
 
 

Email: 
Office@Beacon.ca.gov 

 
 

Website: 
http://www.beacon.ca.gov 

 



ITEM 1C 
 

EXHIBIT I  
 

Minutes from March 15, 2024, Board Meeting 

  



BEACON BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING MINUTES 
 
DATE: Friday, March 15, 2024 
TIME: 9:00 AM 
PLACE: IN-PERSON IN CARPINTERIA & TELECONFERENCE 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Item  1A Call to Order, Roll Call, and Introductions – Chair, Vianey Lopez 

Minutes
/ 
Actions: 

Directors Present:  
• Vianey Lopez (County of Ventura) REMOTE 
• Das Williams (County of Santa Barbara) 
• Laura Capps (County of Santa Barbara) REMOTE 
• Kyle Richards (City of Goleta) 
• Eric Friedman (City of Santa Barbara) 
• Monica Solórzano (City of Carpinteria) 
• Doug Halter (City of Ventura) 
• Gabe Teran, (City of Oxnard) REMOTE 
• Steven Gama (City of Port Hueneme) 
Directors Not Present: 
• Matt LaVere (County of Ventura) 

Item  1B - C 

Approval of Administrative Items  
B. Approval of Agenda and Filing of Certificate of Agenda Posting. 
C. Consideration and Approval of Minutes of the BEACON Meeting held 

on January 26, 2024. 

Minutes
/ 
Actions: 

Board Members Comments: 
• None.  
 
Public Comments: 
• None. 
 
Motion to approve Administrative Agenda. Moved by Friedman / Second by 
Solorzano. Unanimously approved. 

 

Item  2 Public Comment and Other Matters not on the Agenda 
Receive public comments. 

Minutes/ 
Actions: 

Board Members Comments: 
• None.  
 
Public Comments: 
• None. 

 

Item  3 

BEACON Budget Actions and Financial Reports 
Recommended Actions: 
i. Adopt an increase to voting member assessments (membership dues) by 3% 

for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 to provide an additional $10,080 in revenue. 
(Exhibit I) (Requires unanimous approval (10/10 vote); and 

ii. Upon approval of member assessments, review and provide direction for the 
Recommended Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget (Exhibit II) with Final Budget 
Approval to be Presented at May 2024 BEACON Board Meeting. 



BEACON BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING MINUTES 
 
DATE: Friday, March 15, 2024 
TIME: 9:00 AM 
PLACE: IN-PERSON IN CARPINTERIA & TELECONFERENCE 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Minutes/ 
Actions: 

Executive Director Beyeler explained that the dues increase recommendation this year is 
once again cost-of-living and matches that of last year, at 3%. The increase amounts to an 
approx. $10K increase in revenue. The increase is small but does accommodate cost increases 
from some consultants. BEACON continues to engage specialist personnel, which is 
universally very challenging in terms of availability and cost. 
 
Board Members Comments: 
• Director Halter indicated he supported the increase in dues.  
• Director Williams indicated he would support the dues increase. 
• Director Friedman indicated that with SLR issues, BEACON was more important than 

ever and with the work of Executive Director Beyeler, BEACON has become a State-
wide model. 

• Director Gama indicated he supported the dues increase. He indicated that we need to 
look to the future. 

• Director Solorzano asked if the increases in the future will also be cost-of-living? 
• Executive Director Beyeler responded that in 2020 the dues were doubled. Staff intends 

on providing strategic options to determine what the next steps of BEACON will be. We 
have been successful in leveraging funds and with the SAC have been able to retain the 
best scientists available. In November 2024, we will have a presentation from the newly 
established Financial Ad Hoc Committee on the future funding needs and strategy. 

• Director Teran indicated that he supported the discussion and was willing to make a 
motion. 

• Director Richards indicated that he appreciated the limited dues increases, but wanted 
to make sure BEACON does fall behind. 

 
Public Comments: 
• None. 
 
Motion to continue Item. Moved by Teran / Second by Gama. Unanimously approved. 

 

Item  

4. Presentation - 2023 Science Advisory Committee (SAC) Activities Presentation 
Receive a presentation from BEACON Science Advisory Committee (SAC) 
Co-Chairs on 2023 Activities and Looking Forward to 2024.  
• Dr. Kiki Patsch, California State University Channel Islands (CSUCI) 
• Dr. Doug George, California Shore and Beach Preservation 

Association (CSBPA)  

Minutes/ 
Actions: 

Executive Director Beyeler introduced Dr. George and Dr. Patsch co-Charis of the SAC.  
 
Dr. George and Dr. Patsch made a presentation on the SAC, its work over the last year and 
what the future looks like.  
 
Board Members Comments: 
• Director Richards thanks Dr. George and Dr. Patsch for their presentation and for their 



BEACON BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING MINUTES 
 
DATE: Friday, March 15, 2024 
TIME: 9:00 AM 
PLACE: IN-PERSON IN CARPINTERIA & TELECONFERENCE 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

role as SAC Co-Chairs. He indicated that the SAC is vital to BEACON for policy and 
decision makers as well as its work with planning and public works managers from the 
jurisdictions. 

• Director Solorzano asked for an explanation of the context for the application of 
equity/environmental justice by the SAC. 

• Dr. George indicated that the SAC will focus on social and economic issues similarly to 
their other specialties. The SAC is still looking for a specialist in the area of equity and 
environmental justice. 

• Executive Director Beyeler added that at the November 2022, Board Meeting the Board 
approved a Bylaw amendment to include the equity person on the SAC. The position has 
yet to be filled. 

• Director Gama recommended BEACON needs to get more involved in legislative actions 
to fund coastal projects. The Matilija Dam removal project secured Federal funding and 
sediment releases have begun. Mr. Gama also expressed his support for social equity 
specialist involvement. 

• Director Friedman asked Dr. Patsch how and if the science data that is being gathered is 
connected to coastal access questions. 

• Dr. Patsch responded that the determination of what beach is important from a social and 
equity standpoint is a variable that the SAC is considering as we look at adaptation 
strategies in response to SLR. Dr. Goerge also pointed out that BEACON is only one of 
three agencies that is examining the question of “who goes to the beach”. The other 
agencies are San Diego, and San Francisco. 

• Director Halter thanked Dr. Patsch and Dr. George for their volunteer work with the SAC. 
Mr. Halter asked how the SAC was interfacing with the Coastal Commission. 

• Dr. George responded that the SAC is well connected with the Coastal Commission. The 
SAC has two retired Coastal Staff, Lesley Ewing and Charles Lester. Mr. Beyeler added 
that a SAC meeting with the Coastal Commission was being planned in order to keep the 
Commission in the loop of SAC activities. In addition, the RCAMP is funded by the 
Coastal Commission. 

• Director Richards indicated that he understood the need for standardized monitoring and 
that BEACON was in a great position to facilitate this. Mr. Richards remembered that 
bio and equity were added to the SAC scope in 2022 and he asked if the SAC had an 
expertise in Water Quality.  

• Dr. George responded that to date water quality has not been a focus of the SAC, but that 
it is on the list to add this specialty. Mr. Beyeler added that in the update to the research 
agenda, water quality will be discussed. 

 
Public Comments: 
• John Ilasin, Public Works Director from the City of Carpinteria asked what level of effort 

is anticipated to coordinate with local agencies re/ the dune and shoreline management 
plan. 

• Dr. Patsch responded that the SAC will be reaching out. 
 



BEACON BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING MINUTES 
 
DATE: Friday, March 15, 2024 
TIME: 9:00 AM 
PLACE: IN-PERSON IN CARPINTERIA & TELECONFERENCE 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Item  6A BEACON Organization and Program 
Board Members Reports 

Minutes/ 
Actions: 

• Director Richards reported that a sewage spill of over 1 M gallons discharge occurred at 
Goleta Beach in February. The discharge occurred on February 16, 2024, although it was 
not announced till after this date. The City of Goleta was very concerned. 

• Director Capps reported that this morning Goleta Beach was reopened following the 
sewage discharge, and that she has asked for an after action report. 

• Director Gama indicated that he was forced to stop surfing at Santa Clause River in the 
1980’s because of a sewage spill. Mr. Gama also indicated that the City of Port Hueneme 
was teaming up with Surf Rider to implement an environmentally clean up Ormond 
Beach. 

• Director Friedman reported that OPC has released a new draft SLR projection for public 
comment. 

• Director Solorzano reported that the City of Carpinteria has taken down its winter berm 
and cobble has been exposed. It is a good opportunity to remind the community of the 
importance of cobble in maintaining beaches. 

 
Public Comments: 
• None. 

 

Item  6B 

BEACON Contracts and Agreements 
Recommended Actions: 
i. Approve and authorize payment of an invoice to the California State University 

Channel Islands (CSUCI) in the amount of $2,173.56 to initiate review of a 
coastal research center.  

ii. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Integral 
Consulting to assist BEACON in completing a report on options for integrating 
Regional Sediment Management and Sea-Level Rise (SLR) Adaptation with a 
period of performance from March 15, 2024, to December 31, 2024, in an amount 
not to exceed $50,000. 

Minutes/ 
Actions: 

Executive Director Beyeler explained that as the Board knows, BEACON needs outside 
entities to perform work and it is often important to keep the work within a Fiscal Year. The 
first item is the last payment to CSUCI for the new Coastal Resources Center. This invoice 
did not make it into FY 22-23 and therefore must be paid in FY 23-24. Staff recommends the 
Board authorize approval of the invoice. The second item is a new agreement with Integral 
for work to prepare a report on options for integrating Regional Sediment Management and 
Sea-Level Rise (SLR) Adaptation. The work is being paid through a grant from the Coastal 
Conservancy. 
 
Public Comments: 
• None. 
 
Motion to approve all items.  Moved by Solorzano / Second by Capps. Unanimously 



BEACON BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING MINUTES 
 
DATE: Friday, March 15, 2024 
TIME: 9:00 AM 
PLACE: IN-PERSON IN CARPINTERIA & TELECONFERENCE 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

approved. 
 

Item  7 

Closed Session 
Executive Director Performance Evaluation. (Gov. Code § 54957(b)(1).) 
Conference with Labor Negotiators (Gov. Code § 54957.6(a).) 
Employee: Executive Director. 
Agency-designated representatives: Chair Lopez and Counsel McKenzie. 

Minutes/ 
Actions: 

Following the Closed Session, Counsel McKenzie indicated there were no items to report 
out. 
 

 

Item  8 

Executive Director’s Report and Communications 
The Executive Director will report on recent activities and achievements of 
BEACON, upcoming events of interest to the Board of Directors and the public, 
and general status of BEACON major projects, including the status of recent 
BEACON presentations on activities and accomplishments to our member 
agencies. There will be no Board discussion except to ask questions or refer 
matters to Staff; no action will be taken unless listed on a subsequent agenda. 

Minutes/ 
Actions: 

The Executive Director indicated that at the May 2024 Board Meeting the budget for FY 24-
25 will be presented for approval along with the professional and technical specialists and 
agency services agreements for FY 24-25. 

 
The next Board Meeting will be held on May 17, 2024, 9:00 AM, at the City of Carpinteria City 
Council Chambers.  
 
Meeting Minutes by Gerald Comati, Program Manager, BEACON. 
 



Page 1 of 1 
 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2024 
Agenda Item: 2 

 
To:  BEACON Board of Directors 
From:  Executive Director 
Date:  May 10, 2024 
 
Subject:  Public Comment and Other Matters not on the Agenda 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

Receive Public Comments. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A California Joint Powers Agency 
 

Member Agencies 
 

Monica Solorzano 
City of Carpinteria 

 
Kyle Richards, Vice-Chair 

City of Goleta 
 

Gabe Teran 
City of Oxnard 

 
Steven Gama 

City of Port Hueneme 
 

Doug Halter 
City of San Buenaventura 

 
Eric Friedman 

City of Santa Barbara 
 

        Laura Capps 
     Das Williams 

County of Santa Barbara 
 

Vianey Lopez, Chair 
 Matt LaVere 

County of Ventura 
 
 

Executive Director 
Marc Beyeler 

 
 

Santa Barbara Address: 
105 East Anapamu, Suite 201 

Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 
 

Ventura Address: 
501 Poli St. 
P.O. Box 99 

Ventura, CA 93001 
 
 

Email: 
Office@Beacon.ca.gov 

 
 

Website: 
http://www.beacon.ca.gov 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

  STAFF REPORT  

Meeting Date:  May 17, 2024 
Agenda Item: 3 

 
To:       BEACON Board of Directors 
From:  Executive Director 
Date:    May 10, 2024 

 
Subject:   BEACON Budget Actions and Financial Reports 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: 

i. Adopt an increase to voting member assessments (membership 
dues) by 3% for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 to provide an additional 
$10,080 in revenue. (Exhibit I) (Requires unanimous approval 
(10/10 vote); and 

ii. Upon approval of member assessments, review and approve the 
Recommended Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget. 
 

DISCUSSION: 

Recommendation i: 
For the proposed fiscal year 2024-25 Budget, staff recommends a limited 
increase in dues based on the Cost of Living documented for calendar year 
2023. For the current Fiscal Year 2023-24, the Board approved a 5.1% Cost 
of Living (COL) increase for the budget year. For the proposed FY 2024-25 
budget, staff is again requesting limiting any increase in dues to COL, in this 
case 3%, which is the COL figure used by BEACON’s fiscal agent, Ventura 
County. The County’s COL figure is based upon the Consumer Price Index 
(CPI), which measures the average change over time in the prices paid for 
goods and services (Exhibit II). This increase will provide BEACON with 
an additional $10,080 in revenue. Approval of a member dues increase 
requires a unanimous approval of the Board (10/10). 
 
Recommendation ii: 
The Recommended Budget for FY 2024-25 includes a total operations 
budget of $360,427. The operational expenses for this year include costs 
associated with budgeting for necessary professional services to BEACON, 
including BEACON’s continuing professional staff, its agreements with 
Ventura County and with Santa Barbara County for fiscal and legal services, 
the annual Agreement with California State University Channel Islands, and 
funding for Science Support services. The proposed budget for the coming 
year also includes limited funds to support a Grants Specialist to assist the 
Executive Director and the Program Manager in managing extramural 
funding to BEACON. Without grant income, BEACON is unable to conduct 
a range of activities which support BEACON’s primary goals and objectives.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A California Joint Powers Agency 
 

Member Agency  
Representatives 

 
Monica Solorzano 
City of Carpinteria 

 
Kyle Richards, Vice-Chair 

City of Goleta 
 

Gabe Teran 
City of Oxnard 

 
Steven Gama 

City of Port Hueneme 
 

Doug Halter 
City of San Buenaventura 

 
Eric Friedman 

City of Santa Barbara 
 

Laura Capps 
Das Williams 

County of Santa Barbara 
 

Vianey Lopez, Chair 
Matt LaVere 

County of Ventura 
 

Executive Director 
Marc Beyeler 

 
 

Santa Barbara Address: 
105 East Anapamu, Suite 201 

Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 
 

Ventura Address: 
501 Poli St. 
P.O. Box 99 

Ventura, CA 93001 
 
 

Email: 
Staff@Beacon.ca.gov 

 
 

Website: 
http://www.beacon.ca.gov 

 



 BEACON Budget Actions and Financial Reports March 17, 2024 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Many services required by BEACON are increasing including insurance costs, and project 
technical, and professional consulting fees. Nonetheless, planned annual operating expenditures 
do not exceed annual operating revenues, retaining the BEACON fund balance at current levels. 
Final Budget approval will be presented to the Board at the May Board Meeting.  
 

 
 

Exhibits: 

I. BEACON Proposed Membership Dues FY 2024-25, CPI COL figures;  
II. BEACON Proposed Budget for FY 2024-25. 
III. Budget Resolution 2024-3 for FY 2024-2025. 
 



ITEM 3 
 

EXHIBIT I  
 

BEACON Membership Dues FY 2024-25, CPI COL Figures 

  





ITEM 3 
 

EXHIBIT II 
 

BEACON Proposed Budget for FY 2024-25 





ITEM 3 
 

EXHIBIT III 
 

Budget Resolution 2024-3 for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

 

  











Page 1 of 1 
 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2024 
Agenda Item: 5A 

 
To:  BEACON Board of Directors 
From:  Executive Director 
Date:  May 10, 2024 
 
Subject:  Board Member Reports 

Directors are invited to provide reports and updates on items of interest in 
their County or City. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A California Joint Powers Agency 
 

Member Agencies 
 

Monica Solorzano 
City of Carpinteria 

 
Kyle Richards, Vice-Chair 

City of Goleta 
 

Gabe Teran 
City of Oxnard 

 
Steven Gama 

City of Port Hueneme 
 

Doug Halter 
City of San Buenaventura 

 
Eric Friedman 

City of Santa Barbara 
 

        Laura Capps 
     Das Williams 

County of Santa Barbara 
 

Vianey Lopez, Chair 
 Matt LaVere 

County of Ventura 
 
 

Executive Director 
Marc Beyeler 

 
 

Santa Barbara Address: 
105 East Anapamu, Suite 201 

Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 
 

Ventura Address: 
501 Poli St. 
P.O. Box 99 

Ventura, CA 93001 
 
 

Email: 
Office@Beacon.ca.gov 

 
 

Website: 
http://www.beacon.ca.gov 

 



 

STAFF REPORT 
Meeting Date: May 17, 2024 

Agenda Item: 5B 
 
To:  BEACON Board of Directors 
From: Executive Director 
Date: May 10, 2024 
 
Subject: Appointment of Brian Brennan as Special Projects Advisor 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
i. Receive a Staff Report on Special Projects Staff;  
ii. Adopt Resolution 2024-2 appointing Brian Brennan as Special  
 Projects Volunteer Staff for a period up to June 30, 2025 (Exhibit 1). 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Until May 2020, Brian Brennan served as BEACON’s Executive Director 
and was involved in several important ongoing BEACON projects. Upon his 
retirement, he continues to assist BEACON executive staff on a select 
number of important BEACON projects. Mr. Brennan possesses unique 
knowledge and understanding of projects and has extensive experience 
working with project partners that is invaluable in successfully completing 
the projects. In order to continue BEACON implementation actions, 
BEACON staff require the assistance of Mr. Brennan. 
 
Without a formal appointment, however, Mr. Brennan does not have full 
access to BEACON project documents and internal communications.  
In order to be effective in providing assistance, Mr. Brennan requires access 
to the full range of project communications. It is the desire of BEACON 
Executive Director to continue Mr. Brennan’s involvement in certain 
BEACON projects to assist BEACON staff on essential project tasks for a 
period until June 30, 2025. BEACON executive staff is recommending the 
BEACON Board appoint Mr. Brennan as a Special Projects Volunteer Staff.  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A California Joint Powers Agency 
 

Member Agencies 
 

Monica Solorzano 
City of Carpinteria 

 
Kyle Richards, Vice-Chair 

City of Goleta 
 

Gabe Teran 
City of Oxnard 

 
Steven Gama 

City of Port Hueneme 
 

Doug Halter 
City of San Buenaventura 

 
Eric Friedman 

City of Santa Barbara 
 

Laura Capps 
Das Williams 

County of Santa Barbara 
 

Vianey Lopez, Chair 
Matt LaVere 

County of Ventura 
 

Executive Director 
Marc Beyeler 

 
 

Santa Barbara Address: 
105 East Anapamu, Suite 201 

Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 
 

Ventura Address: 
501 Poli St. 
P.O. Box 99 

Ventura, CA 93001 
 
 

Email: 
Staff@Beacon.ca.gov 

 
 

Website: 
http://www.beacon.ca.gov 

 



ITEM 5B 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

Resolution 2024-2 Appointing Brian Brennan as Special  

 Projects Volunteer Staff 

 

  



 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BEACH EROSION AUTHORITY  
FOR CLEAN OCEANS AND NOURISHMENT 

(BEACON) 
 

APPOINTING BRIAN BRENNAN AS SPECIAL 
PROJECTS VOLUNTEER STAFF  
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2 
 

WHEREAS the Beach Erosion Authority for Clean Oceans and Nourishment (BEACON) 

desires to define the relationship of Brian Brennan to the agency for assisting in project 

development and implementation of select projects;  

 

WHEREAS BEACON is established under a joint powers agreement (JPA) executed by 

each of the incorporated cities and the counties;  

 

WHEREAS BEACON is charged with developing and implementing regional sediment 

management, beach and coastal restoration projects (JPA § 3, 5.d., 5.e.; Bylaws, Art. 1, 

§ 3.B.);   

 

WHEREAS BEACON established the Beach Shoreline Sand Supply and Public Access 

Fund in 2014;  

 

WHEREAS pursuant to Section 6502 of the Government Code, BEACON may jointly 

exercise any power common to its member agencies; 

 

WHEREAS BEACON is authorized to engage knowledgeable staff to assist in the 

implementation of BEACON projects (Bylaws, Art. VII, § 1); 

 

WHEREAS Brian Brennan has demonstrated specialized knowledge of BEACON 

projects and has extensive relationships with BEACON project partners which are 

invaluable in successfully implementing BEACON projects.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT BEACON appoints Brian 

Brennan as a Special Projects Volunteer Staff.  



Resolution 2022-#, Page 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of May 2024 the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Vianey Lopez, Chair 
Beach Erosion Authority for Clean Oceans and Nourishment 
BEACON 

Date:  _______________ 

ATTEST: 

Marc Beyeler, Executive Director 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Rachel Van Mullem 
Santa Barbara County Counsel 

Deputy County Counsel 



BEACON Board May 17, 2024, Board Meeting – Item 5C 
 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 

STAFF REPORT 
Meeting Date: May 17, 2024 

Agenda Item: 5C 
 
To:  BEACON Board of Directors 
From:  Executive Director 
Date:  May 10, 2024 
 
Subject:  Contracts and Agreements 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: 
 
Grant Agreements 

i. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with 
California State University Channel Islands (CSUCI) for the 
Southern California Cell Phone Data Project to assist BEACON in 
analyzing large-scale mobility data from cell phone derived-location 
beach information in combination with traditional on-the-ground 
beach use counts and surveys with a period of performance May 21, 
2024 to June 30, 2025 in an amount not to exceed $40,000 using grant 
funds provided by The Bay Foundation (Attachment I). 

ii. Approve, ratify, and authorize the Executive Director to execute 
Amendment No. 1 to the Grant Agreement with the California Ocean 
Protection Council (OPC) for the Coastal Resilience project to extend 
the term through December 31, 2024, consistent with the approved 
scope of work and without a change in the grant amount of $440,800 
(Attachment II).  

iii. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with 
Environmental Science Associates (ESA) to provide continuous 
project performance physical monitoring of the Surfers Point Nature-
Based Living Shoreline and Managed Retreat project with a period 
of performance from May 17, 2024, to December 31, 2024, in an 
amount not to exceed $25,000 using grant funds provided by the CA 
Ocean Protection Council (Attachment III). 

iv. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with 
Coastal Restoration Consultants (CRC) to provide continuous project 
performance ecological monitoring of the Surfers Point Nature-
Based Living Shoreline and Managed Retreat project with a period 
of performance from May 17, 2024, to December 31, 2024, in an 
amount not to exceed $10,000 using grant funds provided by the CA 
Ocean Protection Council (Attachment IV). 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A California Joint Powers Agency 
 

Member Agencies 
 

Monica Solorzano 
City of Carpinteria 

 
Kyle Richards, Vice-Chair 

City of Goleta 
 

Gabe Teran 
City of Oxnard 

 
Steven Gama 

City of Port Hueneme 
 

Doug Halter 
City of San Buenaventura 

 
Eric Friedman 

City of Santa Barbara 
 

Laura Capps 
Das Williams 

County of Santa Barbara 
 

Vianey Lopez, Chair 
Matt LaVere 

County of Ventura 
 

Executive Director 
Marc Beyeler 

 
 

Santa Barbara Address: 
105 East Anapamu, Suite 201 

Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 
 

Ventura Address: 
501 Poli St. 
P.O. Box 99 

Ventura, CA 93001 
 
 

Email: 
Staff@Beacon.ca.gov 

 
 

Website: 
http://www.beacon.ca.gov 

 



BEACON Board May 17, 2024, Board Meeting – Item 5C 
 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 

v. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement with 
Environmental Science Associates (ESA) to assist BEACON with completing the Regional 
Coastal Adaptation Monitoring Plan (RCAMP) and developing the specific pilot projects 
without a change to the a period of performance from December 15, 2022 to December 31, 
2025, in an amount not to exceed $70,000 using grant funds provided by the California 
Coastal Commission, in coordination with the City of Santa Barbara (Attachment V);  

vi. Approve, ratify, and authorize the Executive Director to execute Amendment No. 2 to the 
Grant Agreement with the Ocean Protection Council (OPC) for the Santa Barbara County 
Debris Basin Modifications Project to extend the term through December 31, 2024, and to 
re-define the scope of the project without a change in the grant amount of $539,000 
(Attachment VI);  

vii. Approve and authorize the Chair to sign a Cooperative Agreement with the Santa Barbara 
County Flood Control District to define the roles and responsibilities for delivery of the 
Santa Barbara County Debris Basin Modifications Project with a period of performance 
ending December 31, 2024, for an amount not to exceed $539,000 (Attachment VII). 

 
Annual Agreements - After approval and adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget: 
 
viii. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Marc Beyeler/Beyeler & 

Associates to provide Executive Director Services to BEACON with a period of 
performance from July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025, in an amount not to 
exceed $159,640 (Attachment VIII). 

ix. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Gerald Comati/COM3 
Consulting to provide Program and Project Management Services to BEACON with a 
period of performance from July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025, in an amount not to 
exceed $50,000 (Attachment IX). 

x. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Pam Baumgardner to 
provide Webmaster, Social Media Communication, and Information Management Services 
to BEACON with a period of performance from July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025, in an 
amount not to exceed $6,000 (Attachment X). 

xi. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Santa Barbara County for 
Legal Services to BEACON with a period of performance from July 1, 2024, through June 
30, 2025, in an amount not to exceed $15,000 (Attachment XI). 

xii. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Ventura County to provide 
Accounting Services to BEACON with a period of performance from July 1, 2024, through 
June 30, 2025, in an amount not to exceed $20,000 (Attachment XII).  

xiii. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with Jenna Wisniewski to 
provide specialist science support services, focusing on assisting BEACON Science 
Advisory Committee (SAC) activities and providing Geographic Information Systems 
(GIS) Services, in an amount not to exceed $25,000 with a period of performance from 
July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025 (Attachment XIII). 

 
 
 



BEACON Board May 17, 2024, Board Meeting – Item 5C 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

xiv. Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement with California State University 
Channel Islands (CSUCI) to provide research and technical support regarding regional 
sediment management and regional climate adaptation with a period of performance 
from July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025, in an amount not to exceed $10,000 (Attachment 
XIV). 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Grant Project Agreements 
  
Santa Monica Bay Foundation Grant. 
Southern California Cell Phone Data Project – Agreements with California State University 
Channel Islands (CSUCI). 
 
Item i.  
The first agreement is with CSUCI’s Environmental Science & Resource Management (ESRM) 
to implement the BEACON grant from the Santa Monica Bay Foundation to develop better beach 
user information and data to support better beach management and preservation. The staff 
presented a short power point with personnel from CSUCI outlining the program objectives, goals 
and activities for our coastal access data research project. CSUCI, ESRM representatives bring 
specialized professional expertise in acquiring and managing large-scale data sets and in analyzing 
a range of social science research. This continues BEACON’s long-standing support for and use 
of the best available beach use and beach user data to inform coastal beach management and 
preservation.  
  
OPC Coastal Resilience Prop 68 Grant. 
Surfers Point Project – Agreements with Environmental Science Associates (ESA) and 
Coastal Restoration Consultants (CRC). 
 
Items ii, iii, and iv.  
In 2021, BEACON approved a grant from CA Ocean Protection Council (OPC) to develop an 
innovative regional coastal resilience sediment management pilot program focused on sea-level 
rise (SLR) adaptation and coastal resiliency. The term of the grant was originally to December 31, 
2023. Additional time is required to complete the complex studies and consequently, an 
amendment to the grant to extend the term of the grant to December 31, 2024, is required. In 
addition, funded through the OPC Grant, staff are recommending the approval of two agreements 
that continue BEACON’s support for project performance and evaluation monitoring and 
assessment to guide regional adaptive management needs. The effort would integrate coastal SLR 
adaptation goals and activities with BEACON’s long-standing Regional Sediment Management 
(RSM) goals. One agreement is with ESA to undertake continued shoreline monitoring and the 
other agreement is with CRC to continue periodic monitoring of the dune and beach habitat extent 
and condition. BEACON, working with the two consultants, has been involved in supporting and 
managing periodic monitoring of the Surfers Point Demonstration Pilot Project for the several 



BEACON Board May 17, 2024, Board Meeting – Item 5C 
 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

years. The two consultants have been involved in periodic monitoring at Surfers Point since 2012, 
and ESA prepared the original Project Monitoring Plan in 2012. The agreements allow BEACON 
to support a Spring/Summer 2024 Project Monitoring exercise, continuing the long-term data 
series.  
 
Coastal Commission Grant Though City of Santa Barbara. 
Regional Coastal Adaptation Monitoring Project (RCAMP) - Agreement with 
Environmental Science Associates (ESA). 
 
Item v.  
This agreement is an amendment to the original consulting agreement with ESA to allow for 
completion of the RCAMP Plan and begin implementation steps for the identified monitoring 
projects recommended in the plan. The RCAMP represents an important effort  by BEACON to  
identify regional monitoring needs for coastal SLR adaptation and coastal beach resilience 
planning.  
 
OPC Santa Barbara County Debris Basin Projects Grant. 
Santa Barbara County Debris Basin Project - Amendment No. 2 to the Grant Agreement + 
Cooperative Agreement with SB County. 
 
Item vi, and vii.  
In 2017 BEACON approved a grant from OPC to remove two existing debris basins in Santa 
Barbara County and thereby eliminate obstructions to the flow of sediment along two creeks that 
feed the BEACON Littoral Cell. Following the January 2018 Debris Flow disaster, Santa Barbara 
County re-assessed its policy regarding debris basin removal and as a result, BEACON secured an 
amendment to the OPC grant to change the scope of the Project such that the debris basins are 
modified rather than removed. The modified basins would capture large debris, while allowing the 
flow of sediment through the basin and downstream to the coast. A second amendment has now 
been secured by BEACON Staff to extend the term of the grant to December 31, 2024. In addition, 
a new cooperative agreement with Santa Barbara County is being recommended for approval to 
address the roles and responsibilities of Project delivery, which we be completed in 2024. 
 
BEACON Operational Professional Services Agreements 
  
Following approval of the FY 24-25 Budget, the Board is being asked to approve a set of contracts 
and agreements that support the annual operations of BEACON. All BEACON organizational staff 
and professional services are carried out by contract consultants, or in the case of financial and 
legal services, under agreements with member agencies. The important organizational agency and 
consultant agreements include BEACON’s Executive Director, Program Manager, and essential 
specialist professional services, including a Public Information Specialist, a Science Specialist,  
agreements with Ventura County and Santa Barbara County, and an agreement for environmental 
technical services with California State University Channel Islands. Staff are recommending the  



BEACON Board May 17, 2024, Board Meeting – Item 5C 
 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

Board enter into these multiple agreements to support organizational and program activities and to 
provide essential financial and legal support services for the coming year.  

 

 

 



ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT I 
 

Agreement with California State University Channel Islands (CSUCI) for the 
Southern California Cell Phone Data Project   



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 1 of 15 
 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 THIS AGREEMENT (hereafter, “Agreement”) is made by and between the BEACH 
EROSION AUTHORITY FOR CLEAN OCEANS AND NOURISHMENT (hereafter, “BEACON”) 
and California State University Channel Islands, having its principal place of business at and 1 
University Drive, Camarillo, CA 93012 (hereafter, “CONTRACTOR”), individually referred to as 
Party, or collectively as Parties, wherein CONTRACTOR agrees to provide and BEACON agrees 
to accept the services specified herein.  

WHEREAS, BEACON has received a grant from the The Bay Foundation to provide 
mobility location data project support services through grant funds.  

WHEREAS, BEACON desires to procure services from CSUCI for technical data 
acquisition and data methods and analysis and GIS visualization for specialized cell phone 
location-derived data for use in identifying beach use patterns and beach user information in 
southern California.  

WHEREAS, the purpose of acquiring and analyzing the data is to help in identifying and 
analyzing beach use patterns at different beach locations and identifying and analyzing regional 
and local coastal public access needs. The Beach Erosion Authority for Clean Oceans and 
Nourishment (BEACON), and its project partners, will use the data to examine regional beach use 
patterns and identify beach user needs and preferences.  

 WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR represents that it is specially trained, skilled, experienced, 
and competent to perform the special services required by BEACON and BEACON desires to 
retain the services of CONTRACTOR pursuant to the terms, covenants, and conditions herein set 
forth. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
herein, the parties agree as follows:  

 1. DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES.  Marc Beyeler at phone number 510-316-6095 is 
the representative of BEACON and will administer this Agreement for and on behalf of BEACON.  
Dr. Kiki Patsch at phone number 805-437-2696 is the authorized representative for 
CONTRACTOR. Changes in designated representatives shall be made only after advance written 
notice to the other party. 

 2. NOTICES.  Any notice or consent required or permitted to be given under this Agreement 
shall be given to the respective parties in writing, by first class mail, postage prepaid, or otherwise 
delivered as follows: 

 To BEACON: BEACON 
  105 East Anapamu St., Suite 201 



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 2 of 15 
 

  Santa Barbara, CA 93103 
  Attention: Marc Beyeler 
   
 To CONTRACTOR: 
  California State University Channel Islands 
  Environmental Science and Resource Management 
  1 University Drive, Camarillo, CA 93012 
  Attention: Dr. Kiki Patsch 

or at such other address or to such other person that the parties may from time to time designate 
in accordance with this Notice section.  Notices and consents under this section, which are sent 
by mail, shall be deemed to be received five (5) days following their deposit in the U.S. mail.  This 
Notices section shall not be construed as meaning that either party agrees to service of process 
except as required by applicable law.  

 3. SCOPE OF SERVICES. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide services to BEACON in 
accordance with Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 4. TERM. CONTRACTOR shall commence performance on May 21, 2024 and end 
performance upon completion, but no later than June 30, 2025 unless otherwise directed by 
BEACON or unless earlier terminated. 

 5. COMPENSATION OF CONTRACTOR. In full consideration for CONTRACTOR’s 
services, CONTRACTOR shall be paid for performance under this Agreement in accordance with 
the terms of Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  Billing shall be made 
by invoice, which shall include the contract number assigned by BEACON and which is delivered 
to the address given in Section 2, NOTICES, above, following completion of the increments 
identified in Exhibit B. Unless otherwise specified in Exhibit B, payment shall be net thirty (30) days 
from presentation of invoice. 

 6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is mutually understood and agreed that 
CONTRACTOR, (including any and all of its officers, agents, and employees), shall perform all of 
its services under this Agreement as an independent contractor as to BEACON and not as an 
officer, agent, servant, employee, joint venturer, partner, or associate of BEACON.  Furthermore, 
BEACON shall have no right to control, supervise, or direct the manner or method by which 
CONTRACTOR shall perform its work and function.  However, BEACON shall retain the right to 
administer this Agreement so as to verify that CONTRACTOR is performing its obligations in 
accordance with the terms and conditions hereof.  CONTRACTOR understands and 
acknowledges that it shall not be entitled to any of the benefits of a BEACON employee, including 
but not limited to vacation, sick leave, administrative leave, health insurance, disability insurance, 
retirement, unemployment insurance, workers' compensation and protection of tenure.  
CONTRACTOR shall be solely liable and responsible for providing to, or on behalf of, its 



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 3 of 15 
 

employees all legally-required employee benefits.  In addition, CONTRACTOR shall be solely 
responsible and save BEACON harmless from all matters relating to payment of CONTRACTOR’s 
employees, including compliance with Social Security withholding and all other regulations 
governing such matters.  It is acknowledged that during the term of this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR may be providing services to others unrelated to the BEACON or to this 
Agreement.  

 7. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. CONTRACTOR represents that it has the skills, 
expertise, and licenses/permits necessary to perform the services required under this Agreement. 
Accordingly, CONTRACTOR shall perform all such services in the manner and according to the 
standards observed by a competent practitioner of the same profession in which CONTRACTOR 
is engaged.  All products of whatsoever nature which CONTRACTOR delivers to BEACON 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be prepared in a professional and workmanlike manner and shall 
conform to the standards of quality normally observed by a person practicing in CONTRACTOR's 
profession.  CONTRACTOR shall correct or revise any errors or omissions at BEACON's request 
without additional compensation.  Permits and/or licenses shall be obtained and maintained by 
CONTRACTOR without additional compensation.   

8. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION. CONTRACTOR certifies to BEACON that it and its 
employees and principals are not debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible 
for, participation in federal, state or local government contracts.  CONTRACTOR certifies that it 
shall not contract with a subcontractor that is so debarred or suspended. 

 9. TAXES.  CONTRACTOR shall pay all taxes, levies, duties, and assessments of every 
nature due in connection with any work under this Agreement and shall make any and all payroll 
deductions required by law.  BEACON shall not be responsible for paying any taxes on 
CONTRACTOR's behalf and, should BEACON be required to do so by State, federal, or local 
taxing agencies, CONTRACTOR agrees to promptly reimburse BEACON for the full value of such 
paid taxes plus interest and penalty, if any.  These taxes shall include, but not be limited to, the 
following: FICA (Social Security), unemployment insurance contributions, income tax, disability 
insurance, and workers' compensation insurance.  CONTRACTOR shall provide its social security 
number or tax identification number to BEACON, which BEACON shall keep on file at its offices.   

 10. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  CONTRACTOR covenants that CONTRACTOR presently 
has no employment or interest and shall not acquire any employment or interest, direct or indirect, 
including any interest in any business, property, or source of income, which would conflict in any 
manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this 
Agreement. CONTRACTOR further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no 
person having any such interest shall be employed by CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR must 
promptly disclose to BEACON, in writing, any potential conflict of interest.  BEACON retains the 
right to waive a conflict of interest disclosed by CONTRACTOR if BEACON determines it to be 
immaterial, and such waiver is only effective if provided by BEACON to CONTRACTOR in writing. 



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 4 of 15 
 

 11. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY.  

A. CONTRACTOR hereby assigns to BEACON, The Bay Foundation, and the US 
Government all “Subject Data”. As used herein “Subject Data” means recorded 
information, whether or not copyrighted, that is delivered or specified to be delivered 
under this Agreement. The term includes copyrights, patents, other intellectual property 
and proprietary rights to all data, documents, reports, photos, designs, sound or 
audiovisual recordings, software code, inventions, technologies, graphic or pictorial 
delineations in media such as drawings or photographs, text in specifications or related 
performance or design-type documents, machine forms such as punched cards, 
magnetic tape, or computer memory, and other materials prepared or provided by 
CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement. Examples include, but are not limited to, 
engineering drawings and associated lists, specifications, standards, process sheets, 
manuals, technical reports, catalog item identifications, and related information. The 
term does not include financial reports, cost analyses, and similar information 
incidental to Agreement administration.   
 

B. BEACON, The Bay Foundation, and the US Government shall have the unrestricted 
authority to copy, adapt, perform, display, publish, disclose, distribute, create derivative 
works from, and otherwise use in whole or in part, any Subject Data reports, data, 
documents or other materials prepared under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR agrees 
to take such actions and execute and deliver such documents as may be needed to 
validate, protect and confirm the rights and assignments provided hereunder. 
CONTRACTOR warrants that any Subject Data and other items provided under this 
Agreement will not infringe upon any intellectual property or proprietary rights of any 
third party.   
 

C. CONTRACTOR at its own expense shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
BEACON against any claim that any Subject Data or other items provided by 
CONTRACTOR hereunder infringe upon any intellectual property or other proprietary 
rights of a third party, and CONTRACTOR shall pay any damages, costs, settlement 
amounts, and fees (including attorneys’ fees) that may be incurred by BEACON in 
connection with any such claims. This Ownership of Subject Data provision shall 
survive expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 12. NO PUBLICITY OR ENDORSEMENT.  CONTRACTOR shall not use BEACON’s name 
or logo or any variation of such name or logo in any publicity, advertising or promotional materials, 
unless otherwise required.  CONTRACTOR shall not use BEACON’s name or logo in any manner 
that would give the appearance that the BEACON is endorsing CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR 
shall not in any way contract on behalf of or in the name of BEACON’s.  CONTRACTOR shall not 
release any informational pamphlets, notices, press releases, research reports, or similar public 



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 5 of 15 
 

notices concerning the BEACON or its projects without obtaining the prior written approval of 
BEACON.  

 13. BEACON PROPERTY AND INFORMATION.  All of BEACON’s property, documents, 
and information provided for CONTRACTOR’s use in connection with the services shall remain 
BEACON’s property, and CONTRACTOR shall return any such items whenever requested by 
BEACON and whenever required according to the Termination section of this Agreement.  
CONTRACTOR may use such items only in connection with providing the services.  
CONTRACTOR shall not disseminate any BEACON property, documents, or information without 
BEACON prior written consent. 

 14. RECORDS, AUDIT, AND REVIEW.   

A. CONTRACTOR shall maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence directly 
pertinent to performance on Federally- or State-funded work under this Agreement in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices consistently 
applied, Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 30, and according to the 
guidelines of the State of California Controller’s Office and the State Auditor General’s 
Office and any of their authorized representatives in effect on the date of execution of 
this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall also maintain the financial information and data 
used in the preparation or support of the cost submission required under Title 40 CFR 
Part 33.502. The U.S. EPA, the State of California, the State Auditor General per Cal. 
Gov’t. Code Section 8546.7, the Comptroller General of the United States, the U.S. 
Dept. of Labor, The Bay Foundation, BEACON, or any of their authorized 
representatives shall have access to all such books, records, documents, and other 
evidence for the purpose of inspection, audit, and copying during normal business 
hours. CONTRACTOR will provide proper facilities for such access and inspection. 
Audits conducted under this provision shall be in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards and with established procedures and guidelines of the reviewing 
audit agencies. CONTRACTOR agrees to disclose all information and reports resulting 
from access to these records. Records shall be maintained by Contractor during 
performance on Federally- and State-assisted work under this Agreement and for the 
time periods specified in Title 40 CFR Part 30. In addition, those records which relate 
to any controversy arising under a Federal or State assistance agreement, litigation, 
the settlement of claims arising out of such performance or to costs of items to which 
an audit exception has been taken, shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR for the time 
periods specified in Title 40 CFR Part 30, Title 50 CFR Part 85 and for up to three (3) 
years after the termination of this Agreement. Access to records is not limited to the 
required retention periods. The authorized representatives designated in this clause 
shall have access to records at any reasonable time for as long as the records are 
maintained. This right of access clause applies to financial records pertaining to all 
agreement change orders made to this Agreement: a) To the extent the records pertain 



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 6 of 15 
 

directly to agreement performance; b) If there is any indication that fraud, gross abuse, 
or corrupt practices may be involved; or c) If the Agreement is terminated for default or 
for convenience. 

 
B. CONTRACTOR shall participate in any audits and review, whether by BEACON or the 

State, at no charge to BEACON.  
 
C. If federal, state or other regulatory audit exceptions are made relating to this 

Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall reimburse all costs incurred by BEACON associated 
with defending against the audit exceptions or performing any audits or follow-up 
audits, including but not limited to: audit fees, court costs, attorneys’ fees based upon 
a reasonable hourly amount for attorneys in the community, travel costs, penalty 
assessments and all other costs of whatever nature.  Immediately upon notification 
from BEACON, CONTRACTOR shall reimburse the amount of the audit exceptions 
and any other related costs directly to BEACON as specified by BEACON in the 
notification. 

 15. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE.  CONTRACTOR agrees to defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless the BEACON and to procure and maintain insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 16. NONDISCRIMINATION.  CONTRACTOR shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, as amended. During the performance of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall 
not unlawfully discriminate, harass or allow harassment, against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religion, national origin, physical handicap, 
disability (including HIV and AIDS), cancer related medical condition, age, or marital status. 
Contractor shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of its employees and applicants for 
employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and harassment. 
Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (California 
Government Code §12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder 
(California Code of Regulations, Title 2, § 7285.0. et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair 
Employment and Housing Commission implementing California Government Code §12990 (a-f) 
set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations are incorporated 
herein by reference, and made a part hereof as it set forth in full. CONTRACTOR shall give written 
notice of their obligation under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective 
bargaining or other Agreement. 

 17. NON-EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT.  CONTRACTOR understands that this is not an 
exclusive agreement and that BEACON shall have the right to negotiate with and enter into 
contracts with others providing the same or similar services as those provided by CONTRACTOR 
as the BEACON desires.  



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 7 of 15 
 

 18. NON-ASSIGNMENT.  CONTRACTOR shall not assign, transfer or subcontract this 
Agreement or any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent 
of BEACON and any attempt to so assign or so subcontract or transfer without such consent shall 
be void and without legal effect and shall constitute grounds for termination.  

 19. TERMINATION.   

A. By BEACON.  BEACON may, by written notice to CONTRACTOR, terminate this 
Agreement in whole or in part, whether for BEACON's convenience, for non-
appropriation of funds, or because of the failure of CONTRACTOR to fulfill the 
obligations herein.   

1. For Convenience.  BEACON may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part 
upon thirty (30) days written notice.  During the thirty (30) day period, 
CONTRACTOR shall, as directed by BEACON, wind down and cease its 
services as quickly and efficiently as reasonably possible, without performing 
unnecessary services or activities and by minimizing negative effects on 
BEACON from such winding down and cessation of services.   

2. For Nonappropriation of Funds.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, in the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated or 
budgeted by federal, state or local governments, or funds are not otherwise 
available for payments in the fiscal year(s) covered by the term of this 
Agreement, then BEACON will notify CONTRACTOR of such occurrence and 
BEACON may terminate or suspend this Agreement in whole or in part, with or 
without a prior notice period.  Subsequent to termination of this Agreement under 
this provision, BEACON shall have no obligation to make payments with regard 
to the remainder of the term. 

3. For Cause. Should CONTRACTOR default in the performance of this 
Agreement or materially breach any of its provisions, BEACON may, at 
BEACON's sole option, terminate or suspend this Agreement in whole or in part 
by written notice.  Upon receipt of notice, CONTRACTOR shall immediately 
discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise) and notify 
BEACON as to the status of its performance.  The date of termination shall be 
the date the notice is received by CONTRACTOR, unless the notice directs 
otherwise.   

B. By CONTRACTOR. Except where BEACON withholds payment pursuant to other 
terms of this Agreement, should BEACON fail to pay CONTRACTOR all or any part of 
the payment set forth in Exhibit B, CONTRACTOR may, at CONTRACTOR's option, 
terminate this agreement, if such failure is not remedied by BEACON within thirty (30) 
days of written notice to BEACON of such late payment. 



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 8 of 15 
 

C. Upon termination, CONTRACTOR shall deliver to BEACON all data, estimates, 
graphs, summaries, reports, and all other property, records, documents or papers as 
may have been accumulated or produced by CONTRACTOR in performing this 
Agreement, whether completed or in process, except such items as BEACON may, by 
written permission, permit CONTRACTOR to retain.  Notwithstanding any other 
payment provision of this Agreement, BEACON shall pay CONTRACTOR for 
satisfactory services performed to the date of termination to include a prorated amount 
of compensation due hereunder less payments, if any, previously made.  In no event 
shall CONTRACTOR be paid an amount in excess of the full price under this Agreement 
nor for profit on unperformed portions of service.  CONTRACTOR shall furnish to 
BEACON such financial information as in the judgment of BEACON is necessary to 
determine the reasonable value of the services rendered by CONTRACTOR.  In the 
event of a dispute as to the reasonable value of the services rendered by 
CONTRACTOR, the decision of BEACON shall be final.  The foregoing is cumulative 
and shall not affect any right or remedy which BEACON may have in law or equity.    

 20. SECTION HEADINGS.  The headings of the several sections, and any table of contents 
appended hereto, shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, 
construction or effect hereof.  

 21. SEVERABILITY.  If any one or more of the provisions contained herein shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, then such provision or 
provisions shall be deemed severable from the remaining provisions hereof, and such invalidity, 
illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement shall 
be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.    

 22. REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to 
BEACON is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and each and every such 
remedy, to the extent permitted by law, shall be cumulative and in addition to any other remedy 
given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or otherwise.  

 23. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.  Time is of the essence in this Agreement and each 
covenant and term is a condition herein. 

 24. NO WAIVER OF DEFAULT.  No delay or omission of BEACON to exercise any right 
or power arising upon the occurrence of any event of default shall impair any such right or power 
or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or an acquiescence therein; and every 
power and remedy given by this Agreement to BEACON shall be exercised from time to time and 
as often as may be deemed expedient in the sole discretion of BEACON. 

 25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENT.  In conjunction with the matters 
considered herein, this Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties 



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 9 of 15 
 

and there have been no promises, representations, agreements, warranties or undertakings by 
any of the parties, either oral or written, of any character or nature hereafter binding except as set 
forth herein.  This Agreement may be altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in 
writing, executed by the parties to this Agreement and by no other means.  Each party waives 
their future right to claim, contest or assert that this Agreement was modified, canceled, 
superseded, or changed by any oral agreements, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel.  

 26. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.  All representations, covenants and warranties set 
forth in this Agreement, by or on behalf of, or for the benefit of any or all of the parties hereto, shall 
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of such party, its successors and assigns. 

 27. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW.  CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, 
comply with all BEACON, State and Federal ordinances and statutes, including regulations now 
in force or which may hereafter be in force with regard to this Agreement. The judgment of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, or the admission of CONTRACTOR in any action or proceeding 
against CONTRACTOR, whether BEACON is a party thereto or not, that CONTRACTOR has 
violated any such ordinance statute, or regulation, shall be conclusive of that fact as between 
CONTRACTOR and BEACON. 

 28. CALIFORNIA LAW AND JURISDICTION.  This Agreement shall be governed by the 
laws of the State of California.  Any litigation regarding this Agreement or its contents shall be filed 
in the County of Santa Barbara, if in State court, or in the federal district court nearest to Santa 
Barbara County, if in federal court.    

 29. EXECUTION OF COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number 
of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original; 
and all such counterparts, or as many of them as the parties shall preserve undestroyed, shall 
together constitute one and the same instrument. 

 30. AUTHORITY.  All signatories and parties to this Agreement warrant and represent that 
they have the power and authority to enter into this Agreement in the names, titles and capacities 
herein stated and on behalf of any entities, persons, or firms represented or purported to be 
represented by such entity(ies), person(s), or firm(s) and that all formal requirements necessary 
or required by any State and/or federal law in order to enter into this Agreement have been fully 
complied with.  Furthermore, by entering into this Agreement, CONTRACTOR hereby warrants 
that it shall not have breached the terms or conditions of any other contract or agreement to which 
CONTRACTOR is obligated, which breach would have a material effect hereon.  

 31. SURVIVAL.  All provisions of this Agreement which by their nature are intended to 
survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall survive such termination or expiration. 



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 10 of 15 
 

 32. PRECEDENCE.  In the event of conflict between the provisions contained in the 
numbered sections of this Agreement and the provisions contained in the Exhibits, the provisions 
of the numbered sections shall prevail over those in the Exhibits.  

33. STOP WORK NOTICE. Immediately upon receipt of a written notice from BEACON 
to stop work, the CONTRACTOR shall cease all work under this Agreement. In addition, 
BEACON may, without cause, order CONTRACTOR in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt 
the services under this Agreement in whole or in part for up to 7 days. BEACON shall incur no 
liability for a stop work notice or suspension under this provision and suspension shall not 
constitute a breach of this Agreement. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement to be effective on the 
date when fully executed by both parties.  

CONTRACTOR:  THE BEACH EROSION AUTHORITY FOR 
CLEAN OCEANS AND NOURISHMENT: California State University Channel 

Islands  
 

By:   By:  
 
 
Name: 
 
Title: 

Authorized Representative 
 
______________________ 
 
______________________ 

  

Vianey Lopez 
Chair 
Board of Directors 

   Date: ____________________ 
 

ATTEST: 
Marc Beyeler 
BEACON Executive Director 
Clerk of the Board 

By:  
  
  

 
 
 
 
 
  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Rachel Van Mullem 
County Counsel 

By: 
 

 Deputy County Counsel 



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 11 of 15 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Scope of Services 

The CONTRACTOR shall assist BEACON Executive and Professional Staff to: 

1. Design a program for on-the-ground beach counts and beach user surveys, including 
materials, training and personnel. 

2. Select and design specific analysis methods for selecting target beaches for data 
collection. 

3. Develop appropriate sampling plans for each targeted beach location.  
4. Develop and implement a training module for beach count and survey personnel. 
5. Recruit volunteers beach count and survey personnel from cooperating universities, 

including California State University Channel Islands (CSUCI) and Loyola Marymount 
University-Los Angeles (LMU).  

6. Organize and manage the data collection program during the Summer of 2024. 
7. Design and complete data review and analysis. 
8. Prepare project reports and other written or data reports. 

 

 

 

[This area intentionally left blank.] 

 

  



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 12 of 15 
 

EXHIBIT B 
PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS 

Periodic Compensation 

A. For CONTRACTOR services to be rendered under this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall 
be paid a total contract amount, including cost reimbursements, up to but not to exceed 
$40,000.00. 

B. Payment for services and/or reimbursement of costs shall be made upon 
CONTRACTOR’s satisfactory performance, based upon the scope and methodology 
contained in EXHIBIT A as determined by BEACON. 

C. Quarterly, the CONTRACTOR shall submit to the BEACON Designated Representative 
an invoice for the service performed over the period specified. The BEACON Designated 
Representative shall evaluate the quality of the service performed and if found to be 
satisfactory shall initiate payment processing.  BEACON shall pay invoices for satisfactory 
work within 30 days of receipt of correct and complete invoices from CONTRACTOR. 

D. BEACON’s failure to discover or object to any unsatisfactory work or billings prior to 
payment will not constitute a waiver of BEACON’s right to require CONTRACTOR to 
correct such work or billings or seek any other legal remedy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This area intentionally left blank.] 

 

 

 
  



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 13 of 15 
 

EXHIBIT C 
Indemnification and Insurance Requirements 

(For Professional Contracts) 
 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 
CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel reasonably approved by 

BEACON) and hold harmless BEACON and its officers, officials, employees, agents and 
volunteers from and against any and all claims, actions, losses, damages, judgments and/or 
liabilities arising out of this Agreement from any cause whatsoever, including the acts, errors or 
omissions of any person or entity and for any costs or expenses (including but not limited to 
attorneys’ fees) incurred by BEACON on account of any claim except where such indemnification 
is prohibited by law.  CONTRACTOR’s indemnification obligation applies to BEACON’s active as 
well as passive negligence but does not apply to BEACON’s sole negligence or willful misconduct.  

NOTIFICATION OF ACCIDENTS AND SURVIVAL OF INDEMNIFICATION PROVISIONS 
 
CONTRACTOR shall notify BEACON immediately in the event of any accident or injury 

arising out of or in connection with this Agreement.  The indemnification provisions in this 
Agreement shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
INSURANCE 
 
CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement insurance 

against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection 
with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the CONTRACTOR, 
his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. 

 
A. Minimum Scope of Insurance  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CG 00 
01 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products-completed operations, 
personal & advertising injury, with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and 
$2,000,000 in the aggregate.  

2. Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1), or if 
CONTRACTOR has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9), 
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  

3. Workers’ Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for 
bodily injury or disease.  



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 14 of 15 
 

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriate to the 
CONTRACTOR’S profession, with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or 
claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.   

5. If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the 
BEACON requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by 
the CONTRACTOR. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the BEACON. 

B. Other Insurance Provisions 
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

 
1. Additional Insured – BEACON, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers 

are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising 
out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the CONTRACTOR including 
materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. 
General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the 
CONTRACTOR’s insurance at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not 
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10 and CG 20 37 if a later edition is used). 

2. Primary Coverage – For any claims related to this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR’s 
insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the BEACON, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained 
by the BEACON, its officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers shall be excess 
of the CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

3. Notice of Cancellation – Each insurance policy required above shall provide that 
coverage shall not be canceled, except with notice to the BEACON. 

4. Waiver of Subrogation Rights – CONTRACTOR hereby grants to BEACON a waiver 
of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said CONTRACTOR may acquire against 
the BEACON by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. CONTRACTOR 
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of 
subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the BEACON has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. 

5. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention – Any deductibles or self-insured retentions 
must be declared to and approved by the BEACON. The BEACON may require the 
CONTRACTOR to purchase coverage with a lower deductible or retention or provide 
proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense 
expenses within the retention. 

6. Acceptability of Insurers – Unless otherwise approved by Risk Management, 
insurance shall be written by insurers authorized to do business in the State of California 
and with a minimum A.M. Best’s Insurance Guide rating of “A- VII”. 



 

CSUCI Agreement 

 Page 15 of 15 
 

7. Verification of Coverage – CONTRACTOR shall furnish the BEACON with proof of 
insurance, original certificates and amendatory endorsements as required by this 
Agreement. The proof of insurance, certificates and endorsements are to be received 
and approved by the BEACON before work commences. However, failure to obtain the 
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the CONTRACTOR’s 
obligation to provide them. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish evidence of renewal of 
coverage throughout the term of the Agreement. The BEACON reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including 
endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. 

8. Failure to Procure Coverage – In the event that any policy of insurance required under 
this Agreement does not comply with the requirements, is not procured, or is canceled 
and not replaced, BEACON has the right but not the obligation or duty to terminate the 
Agreement.  Maintenance of required insurance coverage is a material element of the 
Agreement and failure to maintain or renew such coverage or to provide evidence of 
renewal may be treated by BEACON as a material breach of contract. 

9. Subcontractors – CONTRACTOR shall require and verify that all subcontractors 
maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated herein, and CONTRACTOR shall 
ensure that BEACON is an additional insured on insurance required from 
subcontractors. 

10. Claims Made Policies – If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-
made basis: 

i. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the 
contract or the beginning of contract work. 

ii. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided 
for at least five (5) years after completion of contract work. 

iii. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another 
claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract 
effective date, the CONTRACTOR must purchase “extended reporting” 
coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.   

11. Special Risks or Circumstances – BEACON reserves the right to modify these 
requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, 
coverage, or other special circumstances. 

Any change requiring additional types of insurance coverage or higher coverage limits must 
be made by amendment to this Agreement. CONTRACTOR agrees to execute any such 
amendment within thirty (30) days of receipt. 

 
Any failure, actual or alleged, on the part of BEACON to monitor or enforce compliance with any 
of the insurance and indemnification requirements will not be deemed as a waiver of any rights on 
the part of BEACON. 



ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT II 
 

Amendment No. 1 to the Grant Agreement with the California Ocean 
Protection Council (OPC) for the Coastal Resilience project   







































ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT III 
 

Agreement with Environmental Science Associates (ESA) to Provide 
Continuous Project Performance Physical Monitoring of the Surfers Point 

Nature-Based Living Shoreline and Managed Retreat Project 

  

































ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT IV 
 

Agreement with Coastal Restoration Consultants (CRC) to Provide 
Continuous Project Performance Ecological Monitoring of the Surfers Point 

Nature-Based Living Shoreline and Managed Retreat project   



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 1 of 15 
 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 THIS AGREEMENT (hereafter, “Agreement”) is made by and between the BEACH 
EROSION AUTHORITY FOR CLEAN OCEANS AND NOURISHMENT (hereafter, “BEACON”) 
and DAVE HUBBARD/Coastal Restoration Consultants Incorporated (CRC), having its principal 
place of business at and 772 Monte Vista Avenue, Ventura, CA 93003 (hereafter, 
“CONTRACTOR”), individually referred to as Party, or collectively as Parties, wherein 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide and BEACON agrees to accept the services specified herein. 

WHEREAS, in 2021, BEACON received a grant from the Ocean Protection Council 
(C0875011) for a pilot regional sediment management program to focus on utilizing regional 
upland sediment resources for nature-based solutions such as beach and dune restoration 
projects in the Santa Barbara Littoral Cell.   

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR assisted the City of Ventura in the development and 
implementation of the Living Shoreline project at Surfers Point focused on dune and beach 
restoration. In addition, CONTRACTOR has assisted the City and BEACON in conducting 
monitoring for Surfers Point project for the past decade.  

WHEREAS, the data collected for this Sentinel Monitoring Site will be added to the long-
term data and shared as part of regional monitoring efforts. 

 WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR represents that it is specially trained, skilled, experienced, 
and competent to perform the special services required by BEACON and BEACON desires to 
retain the services of CONTRACTOR pursuant to the terms, covenants, and conditions herein set 
forth. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
herein, the parties agree as follows:  

 1. DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES.  Marc Beyeler at phone number 510-316-6095 is 
the representative of BEACON and will administer this Agreement for and on behalf of BEACON.  
Dave Hubbard at 805-698-1119 is the authorized representative for CONTRACTOR. Changes in 
designated representatives shall be made only after advance written notice to the other party. 

 2. NOTICES.  Any notice or consent required or permitted to be given under this Agreement 
shall be given to the respective parties in writing, by first class mail, postage prepaid, or otherwise 
delivered as follows: 

 To BEACON: BEACON 
  105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 201 
  Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
  Attention: Marc Beyeler 



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 2 of 15 
 

  
 To CONTRACTOR: Dave Hubbard 
  772 Monte Vista Ave. 
  Ventura, CA 93003 
 
or at such other address or to such other person that the parties may from time to time designate 
in accordance with this Notice section.  Notices and consents under this section, which are sent 
by mail, shall be deemed to be received five (5) days following their deposit in the U.S. mail.  This 
Notices section shall not be construed as meaning that either party agrees to service of process 
except as required by applicable law.  

 3. SCOPE OF SERVICES. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide services to BEACON in 
accordance with Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 4. TERM. CONTRACTOR shall commence performance on May 17, 2024 and end 
performance upon completion, but no later than December 31, 2024 unless otherwise directed 
by BEACON or unless earlier terminated. 

 5. COMPENSATION OF CONTRACTOR. In full consideration for CONTRACTOR’s 
services, CONTRACTOR shall be paid for performance under this Agreement in accordance with 
the terms of Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  Billing shall be made 
by invoice, which shall include the contract number assigned by BEACON and which is delivered 
to the address given in Section 2, NOTICES, above, following completion of the increments 
identified in Exhibit B. Unless otherwise specified in Exhibit B, payment shall be net thirty (30) days 
from presentation of invoice. 

 6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is mutually understood and agreed that 
CONTRACTOR, (including any and all of its officers, agents, and employees), shall perform all of 
its services under this Agreement as an independent contractor as to BEACON and not as an 
officer, agent, servant, employee, joint venturer, partner, or associate of BEACON.  Furthermore, 
BEACON shall have no right to control, supervise, or direct the manner or method by which 
CONTRACTOR shall perform its work and function.  However, BEACON shall retain the right to 
administer this Agreement so as to verify that CONTRACTOR is performing its obligations in 
accordance with the terms and conditions hereof.  CONTRACTOR understands and 
acknowledges that it shall not be entitled to any of the benefits of a BEACON employee, including 
but not limited to vacation, sick leave, administrative leave, health insurance, disability insurance, 
retirement, unemployment insurance, workers' compensation and protection of tenure.  
CONTRACTOR shall be solely liable and responsible for providing to, or on behalf of, its 
employees all legally-required employee benefits.  In addition, CONTRACTOR shall be solely 
responsible and save BEACON harmless from all matters relating to payment of CONTRACTOR’s 
employees, including compliance with Social Security withholding and all other regulations 
governing such matters.  It is acknowledged that during the term of this Agreement, 



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 3 of 15 
 

CONTRACTOR may be providing services to others unrelated to the BEACON or to this 
Agreement.  

 7. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. CONTRACTOR represents that it has the skills, 
expertise, and licenses/permits necessary to perform the services required under this Agreement. 
Accordingly, CONTRACTOR shall perform all such services in the manner and according to the 
standards observed by a competent practitioner of the same profession in which CONTRACTOR 
is engaged.  All products of whatsoever nature which CONTRACTOR delivers to BEACON 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be prepared in a professional and workmanlike manner and shall 
conform to the standards of quality normally observed by a person practicing in CONTRACTOR's 
profession.  CONTRACTOR shall correct or revise any errors or omissions at BEACON's request 
without additional compensation.  Permits and/or licenses shall be obtained and maintained by 
CONTRACTOR without additional compensation.   

8. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION. CONTRACTOR certifies to BEACON that it and its 
employees and principals are not debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible 
for, participation in federal, state or local government contracts.  CONTRACTOR certifies that it 
shall not contract with a subcontractor that is so debarred or suspended. 

 9. TAXES.  CONTRACTOR shall pay all taxes, levies, duties, and assessments of every 
nature due in connection with any work under this Agreement and shall make any and all payroll 
deductions required by law.  BEACON shall not be responsible for paying any taxes on 
CONTRACTOR's behalf and, should BEACON be required to do so by State, federal, or local 
taxing agencies, CONTRACTOR agrees to promptly reimburse BEACON for the full value of such 
paid taxes plus interest and penalty, if any.  These taxes shall include, but not be limited to, the 
following: FICA (Social Security), unemployment insurance contributions, income tax, disability 
insurance, and workers' compensation insurance.  CONTRACTOR shall provide its social security 
number or tax identification number to BEACON, which BEACON shall keep on file at its offices.   

 10. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  CONTRACTOR covenants that CONTRACTOR presently 
has no employment or interest and shall not acquire any employment or interest, direct or indirect, 
including any interest in any business, property, or source of income, which would conflict in any 
manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this 
Agreement. CONTRACTOR further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no 
person having any such interest shall be employed by CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR must 
promptly disclose to BEACON, in writing, any potential conflict of interest.  BEACON retains the 
right to waive a conflict of interest disclosed by CONTRACTOR if BEACON determines it to be 
immaterial, and such waiver is only effective if provided by BEACON to CONTRACTOR in writing. 

 11. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY. BEACON shall 
be the owner of the following items incidental to this Agreement upon production, whether or not 
completed: all data collected, all documents of any type whatsoever, all photos, designs, sound or 



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 4 of 15 
 

audiovisual recordings, software code, inventions, technologies, and other materials, and any 
material necessary for the practical use of such items  from the time of collection and/or production 
whether or not performance under this Agreement is completed or terminated prior to completion. 
CONTRACTOR shall not release any of such items to other parties, except after prior written 
approval of BEACON.  

 Unless otherwise specified in Exhibit A, CONTRACTOR hereby assigns to BEACON all 
copyright, patent, and other intellectual property and proprietary rights to all data, documents, 
reports, photos, designs, sound or audiovisual recordings, software code, inventions, 
technologies, and other materials prepared or provided by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this 
Agreement (collectively referred to herein as “Copyrightable Works and Inventions”).  

 BEACON shall have the unrestricted authority to copy, adapt, perform, display, publish, 
disclose, distribute, create derivative works from, and otherwise use in whole or in part, any 
Copyrightable Works and Inventions reports, data, documents or other materials prepared under 
this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR agrees to take such actions and execute and deliver such 
documents as may be needed to validate, protect and confirm the rights and assignments provided 
hereunder.  CONTRACTOR warrants that any Copyrightable Works and Inventions and other 
items provided under this Agreement will not infringe upon any intellectual property or proprietary 
rights of any third party.  CONTRACTOR at its own expense shall defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless BEACON against any claim that any Copyrightable Works or Inventions or other items 
provided by CONTRACTOR hereunder infringe upon any intellectual property or other proprietary 
rights of a third party, and CONTRACTOR shall pay any damages, costs, settlement amounts, 
and fees (including attorneys’ fees) that may be incurred by BEACON in connection with any such 
claims.  This Ownership of Documents and Intellectual Property provision shall survive expiration 
or termination of the Agreement. 

 12. NO PUBLICITY OR ENDORSEMENT.  CONTRACTOR shall not use BEACON’s name 
or logo or any variation of such name or logo in any publicity, advertising or promotional materials, 
unless otherwise required.  CONTRACTOR shall not use BEACON’s name or logo in any manner 
that would give the appearance that the BEACON is endorsing CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR 
shall not in any way contract on behalf of or in the name of BEACON’s.  CONTRACTOR shall not 
release any informational pamphlets, notices, press releases, research reports, or similar public 
notices concerning the BEACON or its projects without obtaining the prior written approval of 
BEACON.  

 13. BEACON PROPERTY AND INFORMATION.  All of BEACON’s property, documents, 
and information provided for CONTRACTOR’s use in connection with the services shall remain 
BEACON’s property, and CONTRACTOR shall return any such items whenever requested by 
BEACON and whenever required according to the Termination section of this Agreement.  
CONTRACTOR may use such items only in connection with providing the services.  



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 5 of 15 
 

CONTRACTOR shall not disseminate any BEACON property, documents, or information without 
BEACON prior written consent. 

 14. RECORDS, AUDIT, AND REVIEW.  CONTRACTOR shall keep such business records 
pursuant to this Agreement as would be kept by a reasonably prudent practitioner of 
CONTRACTOR's profession and shall maintain such records for at least four (4) years following 
the termination of this Agreement. All accounting records shall be kept in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices.  BEACON shall have the right to audit and review all 
such documents and records at any time during CONTRACTOR's regular business hours or upon 
reasonable notice.  In addition, if this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) 
CONTRACTOR shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor General for a 
period of three (3) years after final payment under the Agreement (Cal. Govt. Code Section 
8546.7).  CONTRACTOR shall participate in any audits and review, whether by BEACON or the 
State, at no charge to BEACON.  

 If federal, state or other regulatory audit exceptions are made relating to this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR shall reimburse all costs incurred by BEACON associated with defending against 
the audit exceptions or performing any audits or follow-up audits, including but not limited to: audit 
fees, court costs, attorneys’ fees based upon a reasonable hourly amount for attorneys in the 
community, travel costs, penalty assessments and all other costs of whatever nature.  Immediately 
upon notification from BEACON, CONTRACTOR shall reimburse the amount of the audit 
exceptions and any other related costs directly to BEACON as specified by BEACON in the 
notification. 

 15. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE.  CONTRACTOR agrees to defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless the BEACON and to procure and maintain insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 16. NONDISCRIMINATION.   CONRACTOR shall not discriminate against any person on 
the basis of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including 
HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and 
denial of family care leave in the use of any property or facility acquired or developed pursuant to 
this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate against any person on the basis of 
residence except to the extent that reasonable difference in admission or other fees may be 
maintained on the basis of residence and pursuant to law.  

 17. NON-EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT.  CONTRACTOR understands that this is not an 
exclusive agreement and that BEACON shall have the right to negotiate with and enter into 
contracts with others providing the same or similar services as those provided by CONTRACTOR 
as the BEACON desires.  



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 6 of 15 
 

 18. NON-ASSIGNMENT.  CONTRACTOR shall not assign, transfer or subcontract this 
Agreement or any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent 
of BEACON and any attempt to so assign or so subcontract or transfer without such consent shall 
be void and without legal effect and shall constitute grounds for termination.  

 19. TERMINATION.   

A. By BEACON.  BEACON may, by written notice to CONTRACTOR, terminate this 
Agreement in whole or in part, whether for BEACON's convenience, for non-
appropriation of funds, or because of the failure of CONTRACTOR to fulfill the 
obligations herein.   

1. For Convenience.  BEACON may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part 
upon thirty (30) days written notice.  During the thirty (30) day period, 
CONTRACTOR shall, as directed by BEACON, wind down and cease its 
services as quickly and efficiently as reasonably possible, without performing 
unnecessary services or activities and by minimizing negative effects on 
BEACON from such winding down and cessation of services.   

2. For Nonappropriation of Funds.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, in the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated or 
budgeted by federal, state or local governments, or funds are not otherwise 
available for payments in the fiscal year(s) covered by the term of this 
Agreement, then BEACON will notify CONTRACTOR of such occurrence and 
BEACON may terminate or suspend this Agreement in whole or in part, with or 
without a prior notice period.  Subsequent to termination of this Agreement under 
this provision, BEACON shall have no obligation to make payments with regard 
to the remainder of the term. 

3. For Cause. Should CONTRACTOR default in the performance of this 
Agreement or materially breach any of its provisions, BEACON may, at 
BEACON's sole option, terminate or suspend this Agreement in whole or in part 
by written notice.  Upon receipt of notice, CONTRACTOR shall immediately 
discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise) and notify 
BEACON as to the status of its performance.  The date of termination shall be 
the date the notice is received by CONTRACTOR, unless the notice directs 
otherwise.   

B. By CONTRACTOR.  Except where BEACON withholds payment pursuant to other 
terms of this Agreement, should BEACON fail to pay CONTRACTOR all or any part of 
the payment set forth in Exhibit B, CONTRACTOR may, at CONTRACTOR's option, 
terminate this agreement, if such failure is not remedied by BEACON within thirty (30) 
days of written notice to BEACON of such late payment. 



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 7 of 15 
 

C. Upon termination, CONTRACTOR shall deliver to BEACON all data, estimates, 
graphs, summaries, reports, and all other property, records, documents or papers as 
may have been accumulated or produced by CONTRACTOR in performing this 
Agreement, whether completed or in process, except such items as BEACON may, by 
written permission, permit CONTRACTOR to retain.  Notwithstanding any other 
payment provision of this Agreement, BEACON shall pay CONTRACTOR for 
satisfactory services performed to the date of termination to include a prorated amount 
of compensation due hereunder less payments, if any, previously made.  In no event 
shall CONTRACTOR be paid an amount in excess of the full price under this Agreement 
nor for profit on unperformed portions of service.  CONTRACTOR shall furnish to 
BEACON such financial information as in the judgment of BEACON is necessary to 
determine the reasonable value of the services rendered by CONTRACTOR.  In the 
event of a dispute as to the reasonable value of the services rendered by 
CONTRACTOR, the decision of BEACON shall be final.  The foregoing is cumulative 
and shall not affect any right or remedy which BEACON may have in law or equity.    

 20. SECTION HEADINGS.  The headings of the several sections, and any table of contents 
appended hereto, shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, 
construction or effect hereof.  

 21. SEVERABILITY.  If any one or more of the provisions contained herein shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, then such provision or 
provisions shall be deemed severable from the remaining provisions hereof, and such invalidity, 
illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement shall 
be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.    

 22. REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to 
BEACON is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and each and every such 
remedy, to the extent permitted by law, shall be cumulative and in addition to any other remedy 
given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or otherwise.  

 23. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.  Time is of the essence in this Agreement and each 
covenant and term is a condition herein. 

 24. NO WAIVER OF DEFAULT.  No delay or omission of BEACON to exercise any right 
or power arising upon the occurrence of any event of default shall impair any such right or power 
or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or an acquiescence therein; and every 
power and remedy given by this Agreement to BEACON shall be exercised from time to time and 
as often as may be deemed expedient in the sole discretion of BEACON. 

 25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENT.  In conjunction with the matters 
considered herein, this Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties 



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 8 of 15 
 

and there have been no promises, representations, agreements, warranties or undertakings by 
any of the parties, either oral or written, of any character or nature hereafter binding except as set 
forth herein.  This Agreement may be altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in 
writing, executed by the parties to this Agreement and by no other means.  Each party waives 
their future right to claim, contest or assert that this Agreement was modified, canceled, 
superseded, or changed by any oral agreements, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel.  

 26. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.  All representations, covenants and warranties set 
forth in this Agreement, by or on behalf of, or for the benefit of any or all of the parties hereto, shall 
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of such party, its successors and assigns. 

 27. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW.  CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, 
comply with all BEACON, State and Federal ordinances and statutes, including regulations now 
in force or which may hereafter be in force with regard to this Agreement. The judgment of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, or the admission of CONTRACTOR in any action or proceeding 
against CONTRACTOR, whether BEACON is a party thereto or not, that CONTRACTOR has 
violated any such ordinance statute, or regulation, shall be conclusive of that fact as between 
CONTRACTOR and BEACON. 

 28. CALIFORNIA LAW AND JURISDICTION.  This Agreement shall be governed by the 
laws of the State of California.  Any litigation regarding this Agreement or its contents shall be filed 
in the County of Santa Barbara, if in State court, or in the federal district court nearest to Santa 
Barbara County, if in federal court.    

 29. EXECUTION OF COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number 
of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original; 
and all such counterparts, or as many of them as the parties shall preserve undestroyed, shall 
together constitute one and the same instrument. 

 30. AUTHORITY.  All signatories and parties to this Agreement warrant and represent that 
they have the power and authority to enter into this Agreement in the names, titles and capacities 
herein stated and on behalf of any entities, persons, or firms represented or purported to be 
represented by such entity(ies), person(s), or firm(s) and that all formal requirements necessary 
or required by any State and/or federal law in order to enter into this Agreement have been fully 
complied with.  Furthermore, by entering into this Agreement, CONTRACTOR hereby warrants 
that it shall not have breached the terms or conditions of any other contract or agreement to which 
CONTRACTOR is obligated, which breach would have a material effect hereon.  

 31. SURVIVAL.  All provisions of this Agreement which by their nature are intended to 
survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall survive such termination or expiration. 



Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 
Page 9 of 15 

32. PRECEDENCE.  In the event of conflict between the provisions contained in the
numbered sections of this Agreement and the provisions contained in the Exhibits, the provisions 
of the numbered sections shall prevail over those in the Exhibits.  

33. SUSPENSION FOR CONVENIENCE. BEACON may, without cause, order
CONTRACTOR in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt the services under this Agreement in 
whole or in part for up to seven days. BEACON shall incur no liability for suspension under this 
provision and suspension shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement to be effective on the 
date when fully executed by both parties.  

CONTRACTOR: THE BEACH EROSION AUTHORITY FOR 
CLEAN OCEANS AND NOURISHMENT: Coastal Restoration Consultants 

Incorporated  

By: By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Authorized Representative 

______________________ 

______________________ 

Vianey Lopez 
Chair 
Board of Directors 

Date: ______________________ 

ATTEST: 
Marc Beyeler 
BEACON Executive Director Clerk of 
the Board 

By: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Rachel Van Mullem 
County Counsel 

By: 
Senior Deputy County Counsel 
Counsel for BEACON 



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 10 of 15 
 

EXHIBIT A 

Scope of Services 

 
CONTRACTOR shall perform the following Services: 
 

1. Assist BEACON Executive and Program staff to complete a dune monitoring evaluation 
in June 2024, focused on vegetation mapping and vegetation habitat evaluation.  
 

2. Complete vegetation mapping and all data entry to allow for comparative evaluation of 
dunes and vegetation extent and condition.  
  

3. Assist BEACON Executive and Program staff as needed in preparing written 
memorandum(s) and or presentation materials describing the dune monitoring effort and 
the performance results of the dune and sandy beach habitats and species. 

 
4. Be present for at least two remote teleconference (and/or on-site) monitoring coordination 

meetings, including at least one prior to the June 2024 monitoring exercise, and a 
minimum of one coordination meeting following the monitoring exercise.  

 
5. Assist BEACON Executive and Program staff in developing any project monitoring and 

reporting recommendations.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

[This area intentionally left blank.] 

 
  



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 11 of 15 
 

EXHIBIT B 
PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS 

Periodic Compensation (with attached Schedule of Fees) 
 

A. For CONTRACTOR services to be rendered under this contract, CONTRACTOR shall be 
paid a total Agreement amount, including cost reimbursements, up to but not to exceed 
$10,000.00. 

B. Payment for services and/or reimbursement of costs shall be made upon 
CONTRACTOR's satisfactory performance, based upon the scope and methodology 
contained in Exhibit A as determined by BEACON.  

C. Payment for services and/or reimbursement of costs shall be based upon the costs, 
expenses, overhead charges and hourly rates for personnel, as defined in Attachment 
B1 Schedule of Fees. Invoices submitted for payment that are based upon Attachment 
B1 must contain sufficient detail to enable an audit of the charges and to provide 
supporting documentation to connect requirements specified in Exhibit A.   

D. Quarterly, CONTRACTOR, shall submit to the BEACON Designated Representative an 
invoice or certified claim for the service performed over the period specified. BEACON’s 
Designated Representative shall evaluate the quality of the service performed and, if 
found to be satisfactory and within the cost basis of Attachment B1, shall initiate payment 
processing.  BEACON shall pay invoices or claims for satisfactory work within 30 days of 
presentation. 

E. BEACON's failure to discover or object to any unsatisfactory work or billings prior to 
payment will not constitute a waiver of BEACON’s right to require CONTRACTOR to 
correct such work or billings or seek any other legal remedy. 

 

 

 

[This area intentionally left blank.] 

  



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 12 of 15 
 

Attachment B1  

Schedule of Fees 

 

 
Hourly Rate: CONTRACTOR’s Hourly Rate shall not exceed $175.00 per hour all inclusive.  
 
Payment for Services is up to and shall not exceed the sum of $10,000.00, which includes all 
cost reimbursements, labor, and expenses, direct, and indirect charges.  
 
Reimbursement expenses shall be at cost.  
 
Travel costs shall be limited to $500 unless otherwise approved by BEACON in advance.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This area intentionally left blank.] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 13 of 15 
 

EXHIBIT C 
Indemnification and Insurance Requirements 

(For Professional Contracts) 
 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 
CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel reasonably approved by 

BEACON) and hold harmless BEACON and its officers, officials, employees, agents and 
volunteers from and against any and all claims, actions, losses, damages, costs, expenses 
(including but not limited to attorneys’ fees), judgments and/or liabilities that arise out of, or pertain 
to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the CONTRACTOR and its 
employees, subcontractors, or agents in the performance of services under this Agreement, but 
this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence, active 
negligence, or willful acts of the BEACON. 

 
NOTIFICATION OF ACCIDENTS AND SURVIVAL OF INDEMNIFICATION PROVISIONS 
 
CONTRACTOR shall notify BEACON immediately in the event of any accident or injury 

arising out of or in connection with this Agreement.  The indemnification provisions in this 
Agreement shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
INSURANCE 
 
CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement insurance 

against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection 
with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the CONTRACTOR, 
his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. 

 
A. Minimum Scope of Insurance  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CG 00 
01 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products-completed operations, 
personal & advertising injury, with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and 
$2,000,000 in the aggregate.  

2. Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1), or if 
CONTRACTOR has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9), 
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  

3. Workers’ Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for 
bodily injury or disease.  



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 14 of 15 
 

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriate to the 
CONTRACTOR’S profession, with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or 
claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.   

If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the 
BEACON requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the 
CONTRACTOR. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum 
limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the BEACON. 

B. Other Insurance Provisions 
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

1. Additional Insured – BEACON, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers 
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising 
out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the CONTRACTOR including 
materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. 
General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the 
CONTRACTOR’s insurance at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not 
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10 and CG 20 37 if a later edition is used). 

2. Primary Coverage – For any claims related to this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR’s 
insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the BEACON, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained 
by the BEACON, its officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers shall be excess 
of the CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

3. Notice of Cancellation – Each insurance policy required above shall provide that 
coverage shall not be canceled, except with notice to the BEACON. 

4. Waiver of Subrogation Rights – CONTRACTOR hereby grants to BEACON a waiver 
of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said CONTRACTOR may acquire against 
the BEACON by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. CONTRACTOR 
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of 
subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the BEACON has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. 

5. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention – Any deductibles or self-insured retentions 
must be declared to and approved by the BEACON. The BEACON may require the 
CONTRACTOR to purchase coverage with a lower deductible or retention or provide 
proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense 
expenses within the retention. 

6. Acceptability of Insurers – Unless otherwise approved by Risk Management, 
insurance shall be written by insurers authorized to do business in the State of California 
and with a minimum A.M. Best’s Insurance Guide rating of “A- VII”. 



 

Dave Hubbard, Coastal Restoration Consultants Agreement 

 Page 15 of 15 
 

7. Verification of Coverage – CONTRACTOR shall furnish the BEACON with proof of 
insurance, original certificates and amendatory endorsements as required by this 
Agreement. The proof of insurance, certificates and endorsements are to be received 
and approved by the BEACON before work commences. However, failure to obtain the 
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the CONTRACTOR’s 
obligation to provide them. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish evidence of renewal of 
coverage throughout the term of the Agreement. The BEACON reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including 
endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. 

8. Failure to Procure Coverage – In the event that any policy of insurance required under 
this Agreement does not comply with the requirements, is not procured, or is canceled 
and not replaced, BEACON has the right but not the obligation or duty to terminate the 
Agreement.  Maintenance of required insurance coverage is a material element of the 
Agreement and failure to maintain or renew such coverage or to provide evidence of 
renewal may be treated by BEACON as a material breach of contract. 

9. Subcontractors – CONTRACTOR shall require and verify that all subcontractors 
maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated herein, and CONTRACTOR shall 
ensure that BEACON is an additional insured on insurance required from 
subcontractors. 

10. Claims Made Policies – If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-
made basis: 

i. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the 
contract or the beginning of contract work. 

ii. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided 
for at least five (5) years after completion of contract work. 

iii. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another 
claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract 
effective date, the CONTRACTOR must purchase “extended reporting” 
coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.   

11. Special Risks or Circumstances – BEACON reserves the right to modify these 
requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, 
coverage, or other special circumstances. 

Any change requiring additional types of insurance coverage or higher coverage limits must 
be made by amendment to this Agreement. CONTRACTOR agrees to execute any such 
amendment within thirty (30) days of receipt. 

 
Any failure, actual or alleged, on the part of BEACON to monitor or enforce compliance 

with any of the insurance and indemnification requirements will not be deemed as a waiver of any 
rights on the part of BEACON. 



ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT V 
 

Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement with Environmental Science Associates 
(ESA) to Assist BEACON with Completing the Regional Coastal Adaptation 

Monitoring Plan (RCAMP)   







ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT VI 
 

Amendment No. 2 to the Grant Agreement with the Ocean Protection Council 
(OPC) for the Santa Barbara County Debris Basin Modifications Project 

  































ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT VII 
 

Cooperative Agreement with the Santa Barbara County Flood Control 
District for Delivery of the Santa Barbara County Debris Basin Modifications 

Project   



































































































































ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT VIII 
 

Agreement with Marc Beyeler/Beyeler & Associates to Provide Executive 
Director Services FY 24-25 

  























ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT IX 
 

Agreement with Gerald Comati/COM3 Consulting to Provide Program and 
Project Management Services FY 24-25  





BEACON/COM3 Consulting Agreement                                  FY 2024-2025 
Project Management Services 
 

Page 1 of 9 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into by and between the Beach Erosion Authority for Clean 
Oceans and Nourishment, hereinafter referred to as BEACON and COM3 Consulting Inc., a California 
Corporation, hereinafter referred to as CONSULTANT.  The purpose of this Agreement is to engage 
CONSULTANT to render professional and technical services for project management assistance to the 
BEACON in the implementation of beach enhancement projects during Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 
 
NOW THEREFORE:  the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 
 
I.  Agreement Organization and Content 
This Agreement is fully comprised of these terms and the attached appendices: Appendix "A", Scope of 
Services; and Appendix "B", Compensation. 
 
II.  Services to be Performed by CONSULTANT 
CONSULTANT agrees to perform and execute for the benefit of the BEACON the tasks, duties and 
responsibilities hereinafter referred to as Services and described in Appendix "A", Scope of Services. 
 
III.  Term of Agreement 
CONSULTANT shall begin performance of the Services on July 1, 2024 and shall complete the Services 
on June 30, 2024.  The term of the Agreement may be extended by Amendment to this Agreement. 
 
IV.  Compensation 
For the performance of the Services, the BEACON agrees to pay CONSULTANT in the manner and at 
the times specified, the compensation set forth in Appendix "B", Compensation.   
Total compensation and cost reimbursements paid by BEACON to CONSULTANT for performance of 
described in Appendix “A”, Scope of Services, shall not exceed $50,000. 
 
V.  Assignment and Subcontracting 
None of the services covered by this Agreement shall be assigned or subcontracted by CONSULTANT 
without the prior written approval of the BEACON. 
 
VI.  Changes to Agreement 
No alteration or deviation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed 
by the parties.  No oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein, shall be binding on any of the 
parties. 
 
BEACON may request, at any time, amendments to this Agreement and will notify the CONSULTANT 
in writing regarding changes.  Upon a minimum of ten (10) days notice, the CONSULTANT shall 
determine the impact on both time and compensation of such changes and notify BEACON in writing.  
Upon agreement between BEACON and the CONSULTANT as to the extent of these impacts on time 
and compensation, an amendment to this agreement shall be prepared describing such changes.  Such 
amendment shall be valid effective the date of final written approval by BEACON and the 
CONSULTANT or as otherwise designated in the amendment. 
 
VII.  Staffing 
CONSULTANT represents that it employs, or will employ at its own expense, the personnel required to 
perform the services under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT specifies that Gerald Comati shall serve as 
Project Principal.   
 
VIII.  Termination of Agreement for Convenience 
BEACON may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving notice to the CONSULTANT of such 
termination, and the effective termination date, at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of such 



















ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT X 
 

Agreement with Pam Baumgardner to Provide Webmaster, Social Media 
Communication, and Information Management Services FY 24-25  















ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT XI 
 

Agreement with Santa Barbara County for Legal Services FY 24-25 

  



 
Page 1 of 4 

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LEGAL SERVICES TO 
BEACH EROSION AUTHORITY FOR CLEAN OCEANS AND NOURISHMENT 

 

This Agreement is made by and between the County of Santa Barbara for services of the County 
Counsel's Office ("County") and Beach Erosion Authority for Clean Oceans and Nourishment, a 
Joint Powers entity ("BEACON") (collectively referred to as, “Parties” or individually as, 
“Party”). 

 
WHEREAS, BEACON is in need of legal services in connection with the execution of its 
duties;  
WHEREAS, the County, has been and is currently providing legal services to BEACON and 
BEACON desires to continue to receive legal services only through the County; and 
WHEREAS, the County is authorized to provide legal services to BEACON at a cost not to 
exceed the actual costs of providing similar services to County departments, and at rates 
effective during the term of the Agreement. 
NOW THEREFORE, to accomplish these objectives, County and BEACON enter into this 
service agreement ("Agreement"), as follows: 
 
1. Term of Agreement. The Agreement shall cover the period of time from and including 

July 1, 2024 to and including June 30, 2025. This Agreement will renew each fiscal year 
thereafter with an annual amendment for each fiscal year’s costs to update Section 4 of 
this Agreement and as agreed to by both Parties. Early termination may be made by either 
Party upon ninety (90) days notice in writing.  

 
2. Scope of Services. County, through the County Counsel's Office, shall provide legal 

services as requested by BEACON, including: legal counsel, contract review and liaison 
with BEACON Board and member agency staff as necessary.  

 
3. Services and Costs. 

a. Counsel Services. Direct professional staff services and costs incurred shall be billed 
at actual hours at approved contract service rates. Clerical and administrative services 
are covered within the professional staff contract rates as overhead.  On signing the 
Agreement, the billing rate will be the Special Senior County Counsel contract 
service rates established by the County effective during the term of the Agreement. 
The current rate is $150.00.  

b. Billing.  The method of billing for the costs of services under this Agreement shall be 
consistent with the normal billing processes established by the County.  

 
4. Fiscal year 2024/2025 Agreement Costs. Legal services costs for 2024/2025 are 

projected to be $15,000.   
 
5. Policies and Procedures. BEACON agrees that, for the services rendered under this 

Agreement, the County will not be required to establish separate policies and procedures 
from those applicable to the County.  Such policies and procedures include but are not 



Agreement to Provide Legal Services to 
Beach Erosion Authority for Clean Oceans and Nourishment – FY 24-25 
 

Page 2 of 4 

limited to guidelines on contracts, County ordinances, claims against the County 
reimbursement for County employee expenses, etc. Authorized travel shall be paid by 
County as part of overhead and will be reimbursed to staff members serving BEACON in 
accordance with County's travel policy in effect as of the date of the travel for which 
reimbursement is sought.  

 
6. Communication. The County shall maintain an ongoing relationship with BEACON by 

providing a designated liaison from the management of the County Counsel’s 
organization who will have the primary responsibility for providing the legal services.  
The designated liaison may meet as needed with the BEACON Executive Officer to 
review the services provided. 

 
7. Indemnification. In lieu of and notwithstanding the pro rata risk allocation which might 

otherwise be imposed between the Parties pursuant to California Government Code 
Section 895.6, the Parties agree that all losses or liabilities incurred by a Party shall not 
be shared pro rata but instead all Parties agree that pursuant to California Government 
Code Section 895.4, each of the Parties hereto shall fully indemnify and hold each of the 
other Parties, their officers, board members, employees and agents, harmless from any 
claim, expense or cost, damage or liability imposed for injury (as defined by California 
Government Code Section 810.8) occurring by reason of the negligent acts or omissions 
or willful misconduct of the indemnifying Party, its officers, board members, employees 
or agents, under or in connection with or arising out of any work, authority or jurisdiction 
delegated to such Party under this Agreement. No Party, nor any officer, board member, 
employee or agent thereof shall be responsible for any damage or liability occurring by 
reason of the negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of other Parties hereto, 
their officers, board members, employees or agents, under or in connection with or 
arising out of any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to such other Parties under 
this Agreement.  

 
8. Amendment. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement may be modified or 

amended only in writing and with the written consent of both Parties. 
 
9. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, is found by any 

court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or invalid for any reason, such 
provision shall be severable and shall not in any way impair the enforceability of any 
other provision of this Agreement.  

 
10. Venue. The venue for any legal action filed by either Party in State court to enforce any 

provision of this Agreement shall be Santa Barbara County, California.  
 
11. Entirety of Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

Parties relating to the specific subject of this Agreement and supersedes all previous 
agreements, promises, representations, understanding and negotiation, whether written or 
oral, among the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  
 
 



Agreement to Provide Legal Services to 
Beach Erosion Authority for Clean Oceans and Nourishment – FY 24-25 
 

Page 3 of 4 

12. Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to BEACON is 
intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and each and every such 
remedy, to the extent permitted by law, shall be cumulative and in addition to any other 
remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or otherwise. 
 

13. Execution of Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an 
original; and all such counterparts, or as many of them as the parties shall preserve 
undestroyed, shall together constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

14. Survival. All provisions of this Agreement which by their nature are intended to survive 
the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall survive such termination or 
expiration. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement was executed by the Parties hereto and effective as 
of July 1, 2024.  
 
Attest: 
Clerk of the Board 
Mona Miyasato 

 COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA, a 
political Subdivision of the State of 
California 

County Executive Officer    
 

By: 
 
 

  
By: 

 

 Deputy  Name: Steve Lavagnino 
   Title: Chair, Board of Supervisors 
   Date:  
     
     
Recommended for Approval:  Approved as to Accounting Form: 
Rachel Van Mullem 
County Counsel 

 Betsy Schaffer, CPA  
Auditor-Controller 

 
By: 

 
 

  
By: 

 

 Department Head    
   
  Approved as to Form: 
   Risk Management  
     
   By:  
    Deputy 
 
 



Agreement to Provide Legal Services to 
Beach Erosion Authority for Clean Oceans and Nourishment – FY 24-25 
 

Page 4 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement was executed by the Parties hereto and effective as 
of July 1, 2024.  
 

 BEACON, a California Joint Powers Agency 

  
By:  

Name: Vianey Lopez 
Title: Chair, BEACON 
Date: May 17, 2024 

  
Attest:  

By: 
 

 
Name: Marc Beyeler 
Title: Executive Director 

  
 



ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT XII 
 

Agreement with Ventura County to Provide Accounting Services FY 24-25  









ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT XIII 
 

Agreement with Jenna Wisniewski to Provide Specialist Science Support 
Services FY 24-25 

  































ITEM 5C 
 

ATTACHMENT XIV 
 

Agreement with California State University Channel Islands (CSUCI) to 
Provide Research and Technical Support FY 24-25 

 













Page 1 of 1 
 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2024 
Agenda Item: 6 

 
To:  BEACON Board of Directors 
From:  Executive Director 
Date:  May 10, 2024 
 
Subject:  Executive Director’s Report and Communications  

The Executive Director will report on recent activities and achievements of 
BEACON, upcoming events of interest to the Board of Directors and the 
public, and general status of BEACON major projects, including the status 
of recent BEACON presentations on activities and accomplishments to our 
member agencies. There will be no Board discussion except to ask questions 
or refer matters to Staff; no action will be taken unless listed on a subsequent 
agenda.  

Upcoming July 2024, Meeting Agenda: 
A. Presentation-Regional Sediment Management (RSM) and Sea 

Level Rise (SLR) Adaptation Planning Initiatives 
B. Project Updates 
C. Budget Planning Update 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A California Joint Powers Agency 
 

Member Agencies 
 

Monica Solorzano 
City of Carpinteria 

 
Kyle Richards, Vice-Chair 

City of Goleta 
 

Gabe Teran 
City of Oxnard 

 
Steven Gama 

City of Port Hueneme 
 

Doug Halter 
City of San Buenaventura 

 
Eric Friedman 

City of Santa Barbara 
 

        Laura Capps 
     Das Williams 

County of Santa Barbara 
 

Vianey Lopez, Chair 
 Matt LaVere 

County of Ventura 
 
 

Executive Director 
Marc Beyeler 

 
 

Santa Barbara Address: 
105 East Anapamu, Suite 201 

Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 
 

Ventura Address: 
501 Poli St. 
P.O. Box 99 

Ventura, CA 93001 
 
 

Email: 
Office@Beacon.ca.gov 

 
 

Website: 
http://www.beacon.ca.gov 

 


	ADPBD1D.tmp
	APPROVED AS TO FORM:
	Santa Barbara County Counsel

	5C - Attachment IV - 2024 CRC 2024 OPC 68Surfers Point Monitoring 05-17-24.pdf
	EXHIBIT C
	Indemnification and Insurance Requirements
	(For Professional Contracts)

	5C - Attachment IX - BEACON FY2425 Agm w COM3 Contract and Exhibits 05-17-24 FINAL Legal Executed.pdf
	ADP2565.tmp
	FY 2024-2025
	XXII. Headings
	Section headings used herein are inserted for convenience only and are not part of this Agreement.
	XXIII. Remedies Not Exclusive
	No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to BEACON is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and each and every such remedy, to the extent permitted by law, shall be cumulative and in addition to any other remedy given hereunder ...
	XXIV. Compliance with Law
	CONSULTANT shall, at its sole cost and expense, comply with all County, State and Federal ordinances and statutes now in force or which may hereafter be in force with regard to this Agreement. The judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, or th...
	XXV. Execution of Counterparts
	This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original; and all such counterparts, or as many of them as the parties shall preserve undestroyed, shall together cons...
	XXVI. Survival
	All provisions of this Agreement which by their nature are intended to survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall survive such termination or expiration.
	XXVII. Conflict Of Interest.
	CONSULTANT warrants by the execution of this Agreement that CONSULTANT maintains no agreement, employment or position which would be in conflict with the duties to be performed for BEACON under this Agreement. CONSULTANT further agrees that during the...



	5C - Attachment XI - BEACON - SBCO Counsel  FY24-25  - 05-17-24.pdf
	BEACH EROSION AUTHORITY FOR CLEAN OCEANS AND NOURISHMENT

	ADP94EC.tmp
	1B1A
	0BItem 
	3BDirectors Present: 
	2BMinutes/ Actions:
	6BApproval of Administrative Items 
	B. 7BApproval of Agenda and Filing of Certificate of Agenda Posting.
	5B1B - C
	4BItem 
	C. 8BConsideration and Approval of Minutes of the BEACON Meeting held on December 8, 2023.
	11BMotion to approve Administrative Agenda. Moved by Friedman / Second by Solorzano. Unanimously approved.
	10BMinutes/ Actions:
	12BItem 
	14BReceive public comments.
	13B2
	15BMinutes/ Actions:
	16BItem 
	18BMinutes/ Actions:
	17B3
	19BItem 
	4.
	22BItem 
	21BMinutes/ Actions:
	24BMinutes/ Actions:
	23B6A
	22BItem 
	23B6B
	24BMinutes/ Actions:
	30BMinutes/ Actions:
	29B7
	28BItem 
	28BItem 
	29B8
	30BMinutes/ Actions:

	ADP1C34.tmp
	1B1A
	0BItem 
	3BDirectors Present: 
	2BMinutes/ Actions:
	6BApproval of Administrative Items 
	B. 7BApproval of Agenda and Filing of Certificate of Agenda Posting.
	5B1B - C
	4BItem 
	C. 8BConsideration and Approval of Minutes of the BEACON Meeting held on January 26, 2024.
	11BMotion to approve Administrative Agenda. Moved by Friedman / Second by Solorzano. Unanimously approved.
	10BMinutes/ Actions:
	12BItem 
	14BReceive public comments.
	13B2
	15BMinutes/ Actions:
	16BItem 
	18BMinutes/ Actions:
	17B3
	19BItem 
	4.
	22BItem 
	21BMinutes/ Actions:
	24BMinutes/ Actions:
	23B6A
	22BItem 
	23B6B
	24BMinutes/ Actions:
	30BMinutes/ Actions:
	29B7
	28BItem 
	28BItem 
	29B8
	30BMinutes/ Actions:

	5C - Attachment I - CSUCI 2024 Cell Phone Agreement CSUCI - 05-17-24.pdf
	EXHIBIT B
	PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS
	Periodic Compensation
	EXHIBIT C
	Indemnification and Insurance Requirements
	(For Professional Contracts)

	5B - Exhibit 1 - Resolution Brian Brennan 05-17-2024.pdf
	APPROVED AS TO FORM:
	Rachel Van Mullem
	Santa Barbara County Counsel

	5B - Exhibit 1 - Resolution Brian Brennan 05-17-2024.pdf
	APPROVED AS TO FORM:
	Rachel Van Mullem
	Santa Barbara County Counsel




